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SODEXO
AT A GLANCE

SUSTAINABLE AND INCLUSIVE BUSINESS MODEL

Founded in 1966 by Pierre Bellon, Sodexo is the global leader in
Quality of Life services.
Sodexo is the world’s only company offering On-site Services,
Benefits & Rewards Services and Personal & Home Services.
Sodexo’s services contribute to the performance of our clients,
the satisfaction of our consumers, the fulfillment of our teams and the economic,
social and environmental development of our local communities.

KEY FIGURES AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

22 470,000 67 100 #1

billion euro in employees countries million consumers France-based
consolidated revenues served daily private employer
worldwide™

69% #1 #2 and #1

employee in its industry sector in its sector in the categories of
engagement rate® in both the Dow Jones among Fortune Innovation and Social
Sustainability Index (DISH)® magazine’s 2019 list of responsibility
and the 2019 SAM World’s Most Admired
Sustainability Yearbook® Companies

Source: Sodexo

2019 Forbes Global 2000 ranking.
2018 employee engagement survey sent to 386,262 Sodexo employees of whom 62% responded.

The Dow Jones Sustainability Indices (D1SI) provide a global ranking of the companies most advanced in the area of sustainable development. They are
jointly compiled by the Standard & Poor’s Dow Jones Indices and SAM.

The SAM Sustainability Yearbook is the world’s most comprehensive publication on corporate sustainability performance. More than 2,600 companies were
evaluated according to economic, financial, social and environmental indicators.

ANIF

This Universal Registration Document was filed on November 20, 2019 with the AMF, as competent authority under Regulation (EU) 2017/1129, without prior approval
pursuant to article 9 of said regulation.

The Universal Registration Document may be used for the purposes of an offer to the public of securities or admission of securities to trading on a regulated market if
completed by a securities note and, if applicable, a summary and any amendments to the Universal Registration Document. The whole is approved by the AMF in
accordance with Regulation (EU) 2017/1129.

This Universal Registration Document is available on Sodexo’s website, www.sodexo.com and on the website of the AMF, www.amf-france.org.

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT



UNLOCKING

Whether enjoying a healthy lunch with colleagues, working efficiently
in a well-designed workspace, appreciating a cultural performance
or interacting with one’s community, Sodexo, world leader in
Quality of Life services, enhances the moments that touch our daily
lives, ensuring that they have a positive impact on our health and
well-being as well as on our neighborhoods, our cities and our planet.
Since 1966, the Group has remained committed to this mission
of sustainably improving quality of life for those it serves and for
the communities in which it operates. Together, fueled by the energy
and professionalism of its 470,000 employees, Sodexo has embarked
on a new phase of profitable and sustainable growth.

]
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR FUNDAMENTALS

A GLOBAL,
INDEPENDENT,
PEOPLE-FOCUSED COMPANY

Sodexo is the community of our consumers, clients, employees
and shareholders. To meet their expectations, we have built a business model
based on profitable organic growth in revenues.
The strength of this model is reflected in our fundamentals.

Since Sodexo’s inception, our mission, our values and our ethical principles have guided the work of all employees.
OUR MISSION OUR VALUES OUR ETHICAL PRINCIPLES
Improve the quality of life of e Service spirit e Loyalty
our employees and those we serve, e Team spirit e Respect for people and equal
and contribute to the economic, e Spirit of progress opportunity
social and environmental e Transparency
development of the communities, e Business integrity
regions and countries in which
we operate.

2
4 SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT WWW.SODEXO.COM



A CONSUMER AND

CLIENT-FOCUSED CULTURE

One of the keys to our ability to
develop and expand a unique range of
Quality of Life services has been our
in-depth understanding of the needs
of clients and end-users. To leverage
our knowledge of the challenges
faced by our clients and to adapt to
the globalization of our markets, our
organization is structured around
global client segments for our

On-site Services. This segment-based
approach enables us to better
capitalize on our size and global
footprint, thereby increasing the value
we bring to our clients. This model
also helps us to meet the needs of our
consumers, which can differ greatly
from segment to segment.

DEVELOPING OUR EMPLOYEES
Sodexo is one of the world’s largest
employers and a company of people
at the service of other people.

Our people have been at the core
of our development in the past

but will be even more so in the
future. Sodexo’s continued growth
is the result of the performance,
development, professionalism and
engagement of its diverse teams.

Recognizing each individual’s
contribution to the Group’s success
is a priority. We are committed to
being an employer of choice by
providing jobs, learning opportunities
and internal progression for our
people that will enable them to

thrive within the Group.

@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

AN INTEGRATED OFFER THROUGH
THREE ACTIVITIES

Through our three activities:

On-site Services, Benefits & Rewards
Services, and Personal & Home
Services, we offer a holistic response
to client needs and provide services
that enable us to accompany
consumers throughout their lives.

We leverage the synergies that
exist among our three activities,
such as business development
opportunities and global brand
awareness. Shared organizations
and infrastructure generate

cost savings while multiple
career gateways offer significant
opportunities for our employees.

A WORLDWIDE COMPANY
RESPONDING TO MAJOR

GLOBAL TRENDS

Major global trends are bringing
new quality of life issues to

the surface. Demographic changes
such as aging populations

and urbanization are leading to
an explosion in the need for home
care services and facilities for

the elderly.

Operating in 67 countries and with
undisputed leadership in developing
economies, Sodexo’s global network
enables us to customize our integrated
offer while delivering a consistently
high level of services worldwide.
These services in turn create value
for our clients and improve

the daily life of our consumers
while respecting our economic,
social and environmental
commitments.

INDEPENDENCE ENSURED
THROUGH FOUNDING

FAMILY SHAREHOLDING
Independence enables us to sustain
our values, focus on along-term
strategy, maintain management
continuity and ensure our
sustainability.

Our independence is ensured through
the Bellon family shareholding:

Mr and Mrs Pierre Bellon

and their children control 72.6%

of our controlling holding company,
Bellon SA.

As of August 31, 2019, Bellon SA
held 42.2% of Sodexo’s capital and
56.6% of the exercisable voting rights.
In June 2015, Mr and Mrs Pierre Bellon
and their children entered into

an agreement for a duration of

50 years, which prevents his direct
descendants from freely disposing
of their shares in Bellon SA. The sole
asset of Bellon SA is its holding in
Sodexo shares and Bellon SA does
notintend to sell this shareholding
to third parties.

The sustained commitment required to
build a truly international organization
and a strong management team,
nurture lasting client relationships

and develop a successful integrated
offer, reflects this vision.

OPERATING WITH INTEGRITY AND RESPECTING HUMAN RIGHTS

Central to its values and ethical principles, respect for human rights is a pillar of Sodexo’s commitment to business integrity
and essential to its mission. Sodexo conducts its business in a manner that does not infringe upon the human rights of
others and works to identify, prevent and mitigate any adverse impacts that may result from its business activities. All
employees and partners are expected to observe this commitment, which is based on the international human rights
principles set forth in the International Labour Organization’s Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work,
the United Nation’s Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights and Sodexo’s Human Rights Policy and Fundamental

Rights at Work charter and Guide.
See Chapter 3, page 74.

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT




@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

MESSAGE FROM SOPHIE BELLON

SOPHIE BELLON
CHAIRWOMAN OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

Environmental challenges, migrant
crises, aging populations, the

growth of inequality, the collapse of
community solidarity, the breakdown
of integration and social mobility, of
education and training... Companies
everywhere are now expected to show
that they are making a contribution
in fields that go far beyond the

scope of their actual activity. But

few companies are as involved in the
major issues facing our world today
as Sodexo. Very few are able to have
an impact as definitive as ours.

Our presence in 67 countries around
the world, our 470,000 employees
caring for 100 million people every
day, our strong local presence, the
wide scope of our business activities
and the diverse sectors in which we
operate allow us to make significant
economic, social and environmental
contributions. This has been a central
aspect of Sodexo’s mission from the
beginning, and an integral part of
how we measure our performance.

Today, accelerated technological
progress is contributing to

these global trends, profoundly
transforming our markets. Traditional
supply and demand mechanisms for
services are changing. The direct link
we have with the end-users of our
services is growing stronger. All this
is inspiring us to review our value
creation models.

In this complex environment, we
remain focused on our top priority:
accelerating profitable growth. We
intend to succeed in the battles we
will choose to take on: our markets
are evaluated at 900 billion euros,
offering tremendous opportunity for
development. It will be increasingly
important for us to make the right
choices if we want to fully benefit
from this opportunity.

To build a promising future, we
need to make winning bets through
active targeting of investments.
The market potential in the food
services industry, in particular, is
immense - over 300 billion euros.

“Making selective choices will allow us to achieve
our goal of one day improving the quality of life
of over one billion people around the world.”

Sophie Bellon

6  SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

“Healthy management practices
and the stability provided by our financial
independence have given us a strong, solid
foundation. We have the capacity to make

the investments our growth will require.”

At a time when food is at the heart

of many challenges, whether social,
environmental or health-related, we
want to mobilize the unparalleled
expertise that we have developed over
the years to promote healthy meals
that preserve natural resources and
promote social balance.

One thing is certain: making selective
choices will allow us to satisfy our
hereditary appetite for conquest

and help achieve our goal of one day
improving the quality of life of over
one billion people around the world.

This goal is more than just a slogan.
We want to continue serving people in
their own communities, at the heart
of the social and economic redlities

in which they live. Our employees live
and work there too, and it’s where
our added value is brought to life.

The maintenance of these social
connections and the vitality of these
local ecosystems must help inform
and guide our future decisions. Local
reality will continue to be our key to
understanding the needs of the world.

We pay rigorous attention to human
development, another vital aspect

of our future. The people who care
for our consumers every day, listen
to our clients, and train and engage
their teams will continue to be our
most precious resource in the future.
In today’s world, attracting new
talent and identifying and developing
the talent we already have is a major
challenge and an essential element of
our differentiation.

| do not believe in a world that

will continue to progressively
disintermediate forever. Influenced
by technological progress, social
connections and human capital will
continue to create more and more
value. But the pace is accelerating:
never before has the tension been so
high between short and long-term
challenges.

Healthy management practices

and the stability provided by our
financial independence have given us
a strong, solid foundation. We have
the capacity to make the investments

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

our growth will require. With our
business fundamentals that have
been the backbone of our success
for 53 years, with Denis Machuel
and our Sodexo employees, and with

the support of our Board of Directors,

we will make the choices that will
allow us to go further and faster to
address the constantly-evolving
needs of our clients and consumers.

Itis the commitment of our
employees to their clients,

their consumers, their teams

and their regions that will make
this possible. | want to thank
them because their hard work
and dedication have made Sodexo
the major company it is today.

7
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

SHARING A LONG-TERM VISION

For Sodexo, the long-term vision that accompanies family control,
is a key to the company’s success. Under the leadership of Chairwoman
Sophie Bellon, the Board of Directors, composed of seven women and five men,
determines the strategic orientations of the companuy.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

Independent
Directors

SOPHIE BELLON
Chairwoman

EMMANUEL BABEAU

Deputy Chief Executive
Officer of Schneider
Electric SE

ROBERT BACONNIER
Director

FRANCOISE BROUGHER
Chief Operating Officer,
Pinterest

SOUMITRA DUTTA

Dean and Professor
of Management,
Cornell University

SOPHIE STABILE
Founder and Chairwoman
of Révérence
Chairwoman of the Audit
Committee

CECILE TANDEAU
DE MARSAC
Chairwoman of
the Compensation and
Nominating Committees

of the Board
o

_—

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION OF

tho]ders Meeting) ’

12

members

(Before and after 2020

Employee

Directors proposed for nomination
at 2020 Shareholders Meeting

representatives

VERONIQUE LAURY

LUC MESSIER

PHILIPPE BESSON
Head of Projects

and Sponsorship

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

CATHY MARTIN
Regional Manager

Family
Directors

ASTRID BELLON
Member of the
Orientation Committee,
Pierre Bellon Foundation

FRANCOIS-XAVIER
BELLON
Founder and
Chief Executive Officer
of LifeCareers Ltd

NATHALIE
BELLON-SZABO

Chief Executive Officer,
Sodexo Sports & Leisure
Worldwide, On-site Services

@ Audit Committee
member

@ Nominating
Committee member

[ ] Compensation
Committee member

—— WWW.SODEXO.COM



@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

PIERRE BELLON
Chairman Emeritus
Founder of Sodexo
and Chairman of the

Supervisory Board
of Bellon SA

BOARD OF DIRECTORS KEY FIGURES AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

6 O %

Independent
Directors*

91 %

Average
attendance rate

Executive management
of international

companies

Finance

Sustainable development -
Societal commitment

<y

OF EXPERTISE @ ,
£ ¥y

-/, ,] 14_
042 .
Nationalities verage years

in office

6 O% 5 6

Women* Average age

Knowledge
of the services sector

\ s/

Strategy -
Mergers and
Acquisitions

< |

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS’ AREAS

' o Marketing
' and Sales
N8 EL/

p -
Digital -
New Technologies

and human resources

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

5 members
75% Independence*

97% Average

attendance rate

* Excluding employee representatives.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

NOMINATING REMUNERATION

COMMITTEE COMMITTEE

LI- members L|' members
50% Independence 1 OO% Independence*
1 00% Attendance rate 1 00% Attendance rate

3 For more information
on Sodexo’s governance,
see Chapter 5.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

11 GLOBAL MEGATRENDS

ADAPTING OUR OFFERS
TO BUILD THE FUTURE

Preparing for the future means being aware of the world’s great
transformations. By defining and analyzing 11 major megatrends with
demographic, social, environmental, economic and technological implications,
we are fine-tuning our strategy and adapting our offers.

Half of the world’s top 500 companies did not exist
25 years ago. This speaks volumes about the pace and
magnitude of the changes we are undergoing, from Europe
to Asia, from the Americas to Africa and Australia. Whether
social, environmental, economic or technological, these
changes are occurring at an unprecedented speed and scale.

Understanding these 11 megatrends allows us to invest
the right resources where they are needed, for example,
by developing new businesses or strengthening our global
footprint. We are also evolving our offerings to respond to new
expectations while creating value for our company.

1. DEMOGRAPHIC SHIFTS

Sodexo responds to these challenges

Developed countries are faced with a rapidly

aging population due in part to slow population
growth estimated at 2.9% between 2015 and 2030.
Meanwhile, developing countries are expected to
experience average population growth of 18.5%
between 2015 and 2030™.

2. URBANIZATION

7 bition

humans will be older
than 65 in 2030,
and will represent 13% of
the world’s population®

* We are developing a range of services that
} enhance quality of life for seniors at home,
such as Amelis and Comfort Keepers©.

Rapid urbanization is contributing to the

increase in GDP per capita, but the emergence of
mega-cities (>10 million inhabitants) is creating
enormous economic and social challenges. In 2030,
megacities will generate 72% of global GDP.

3. EMERGING MIDDLE CLASS

24

of the world’s 31 megacities
in 2030
will be in developing
countries®

* We offer foodservices solutions adapted to
} the increased mobility of employees.

e We have strong positions in Brazil, China
and India.

Education and technologies are transforming
consumption modes and habits. The middle class,
whose purchasing power is on the rise and which
will represent most of the consumers in 2022,

are dedicating an increasing share of their budget
to leisure and culture.

L. GLOBAL ECONOMY

6 OO/O e \We have strong expertise in the field of sporting
and cultural events.
of the world’s population
will be part of the middle
class in 2030,

compared to 27% in 2009*

* \We offer services focused on sports, wellness
and quality of life to meet the aspirations of
the growing middle class.

Capital, information and talent are now
interconnected and trade is growing, providing
companies with new sources of growth.

At the same time, consumers prefer locally-sourced
products.

Roland Berger Trend Compendium, UN DESA.
United Nations, Population Division.

The share of exports in GDP
will increase
from 26% in 2010 to

3 3 0/0 in 2030

* We encourage innovations from the front line
} and share best practices among our sites.

* We source responsibly and give preference to fair
trade-certified products.

|
2
3 GCIF Working Paper No. 4: Population predictions of the 101 largest cities in the 275t century.
4 The unprecedented rise of the middle class: Homi Khara.

> McKinsey Global Institute, Boston Consulting Group RB Trend Compendium 2030.

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT —— WWW.SODEXO.COM



@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

5. DEVELOPING ECONOMIES Sodexo responds to these challenges

By 2025, almost
Developing economies are creating wealth for

We are positioned as a major provider of services

millions of people. Their weight in the world 5 Oo/ in developing economies and contributing to
economy is increasing due to rapid population 0 } their local communities’ economic and social
growth seven times faster than that of developed of the world’s Fortune development.
countries, combined with the rise of the middle 500 companies o We have invested in leading technology
class. will be based in developing companies in China and India.

markets™.

6. PUBLIC DEFICITS

The weight of public debt is leading governments
to consider more efficient ways to provide public We partner with local authorities to create
services and to outsource certain services. Between } and operate Public-Private Partnerships (PPP).
now and 2030, rising public deficits and persistent 9 8 0/0 We offer competitive Quality of Life services
youth unemployment will strongly impact public that enable public spending to be optimized.
policies and taxation.

Public debt will amount to

of world GDP in 2035?"

7. ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES AND RESOURCE SCARCITY

We are deploying facilities management

Energy, water and food services to help reduce carbon emissions from

8.6 billion inhabitants in 2030: the demographic consumption will increase by the sites while advocating sustainable use of

boom is weighing on natural resources, resources.

heightening global warming and disrupting 5 O LI'O 200/ ) L

traditional consumption patterns. ’ and 0 e We are investing in the deployment of )
respectively by 2030 \é\:gztrz\rl]\lqatch, our global food waste prevention

8. EMPOWERED CONSUMERS

Consumers and clients now have unlimited access 6 90/0 * \We create comfortable, safe and healthy working
to information and expect personalized services environments.

and experiences. The niche culture is growing of shoppers are willing } « We improve quality of life through diversified

and B to B is naturally following in the footsteps to trade their personal offers and innovations such as click-and-collect®,
of Bto C. information delivery of meals and subscriptions®...

for personalized services™

9. DIGITAL TRANSFORMATION

Technology disrupts the relationship between 8 5 0/0 « Our digital platforms and apps provide
companies and users and responds to their new i i information about menus, restaurant patronage,
expectations. As the value of data grows, offering of websites are tracking } user accounts, restaurants and shops accepting
new insights and usages, companies are able to internet users’ online Sodexo service vouchers and cards, and
increasingly personalize their offers. behaviors to propose reservations at Childcare centers.

personalized offers(™

10. USE VS. OWNERSHIP

Online shipments will
Why buy if you can subscribe or rent? Collaborative increase by

We are developing concierge and car-sharing

L . options.
platforms are revolutionizing business models We off y booki latf ik
: . : : ; } o We offer work space booking platforms like
and buying behaviors. With their lower capital 2 5 0/0 per gea r Neo-Nomade or Wx, which provide companies

intensity, these business models can generate

much more rapid growth than traditional ones. through 2020 and by 15% with the flexibility they need while contributing to

beginning in 2021® the work-life balance of employees.

11. FUTURE OF WORK

Disruptive technologies such as artificial 6 OO/ o We will train employees and help them
intelligence, robotics or the Internet of Things... 0 re-skill to adapt to new requirements and

all are profoundly transforming the world of of jobs have at least one-third } the automatization of the work environment.
work. To succeed, companies must support of their work load that can be o We are using robots to deliver meals at

employability and attract talent. universities in the U.S.

automated®.

1 McKinsey: The Shifting Global Business Landscape.

2 Joseph Gagnon with Marc Hinterschweiger, June 20711. The Global Outlook for Government Debt Over the Next 25 Years. Implications for the Economy and
Public Policy.

PwC megatrends.

EY- Empowered Customer.

Click-and-collect enables online reservations and collection of purchases at the point of sale.

Digital platforms allow subscribers to receive basic products and ingredients at a special rate to make their own meals.

Forrester Research.

Statista, Roland Berger Trend Compendium 2030, McKinsey Institute: A future that works, UN Population Division, Accenture: Harnessing Revolution.
McKinsey Institute: Jobs Lost, Jobs gained.

L@~ u s w
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

CREATING VALUE BY IMPROVING QUALITY

12

470,000

engaged
employees

o o]y
QQ’O e B 47/
HUMAN <t S o
O %
< e (R
@ o \ M=
22 p
billion euros ~. BENEFITS &
in consolidated 5
revenueas ON_SITE . RE\EAIRA\IRIE)ESS
SERVICES
o, -, 80% :
ECONOMIC 0% - ~. Employee benefits
Foodservices - - o
30% - IMPROVING - 20%
Innovation iy J - Services :
insight gained : Facilities - QUALITY OF LIFE . diversification .
from manage_ment
100 mition ey =
consumers 1 --------------------------------------------------------------
R ELATIONSHIPS Q{I‘Ll/ﬁ PERSONAL & HOME
SERVICES
”sﬁ?t Homecare
Sustainable _ XN
processes 4/1,0 . Childcare \S\
Responsibly- &O ........................ \%\
sourced raw c?//v “5
materials C E5?0
ORPORATE R
NATURAL RESOURCES
OUR VALUES OUR ETHICAL PRINCIPLES
e Service spirit e Loyalty
e Team spirit e Respect for people
e Spirit of progress and equal opportunity
e Transparency
e Business integrity
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(1) UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OF LIFE

.......................................... STAKEHOLDERS OUTCOMES/IMPACTS

81 .6°/o

Retention rate
of total workforce

SUPPLIERS/
EMPLOYEES AFFILIATED MERCHANTS/NGOS -

HUMAN

+710.7%

Average annudl
Total Shareholder
Return
(5 years)

ECONOMIC

N ‘yﬁ—..
‘ E‘i/—iﬁllﬁ“u@

5.5

billion euro
spent
with SMEs”

RELATIONSHIPS

S

NNNNANY

113,826

tons
CO, reduction®

SHAREHOLDRS/COMMUNITIES

NATURAL RESOURCES

All figures are for Fiscal 2019, unless otherwise stated

1 Small and Medium Enterprise, for more information, see page 75.
2 Scopes 1 and 2, compared to 2011 baseline.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

MESSAGE FROM DENIS MACHUEL

DENIS MACHUEL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ENTERING A NEW PHASE OF GROWTH

“Our Focus on
Growth strategic
agenda is working
and has started to
deliver results”

Denis Machuel

This fiscal year was a pivotal period
for Sodexo: we entered a new phase
of growth thanks to our renewed
focus on operational discipline.

Our Focus on Growth strategic
agenda is working and has started
to deliver results. Our consolidated
revenues for the year reached

22 billion euro - with organic
growth, at +3.6%, exceeding our
expectations in nearly all regions,
particularly in North America.

This is Sodexo’s best organic growth
over the last seven fiscal years.

Our On-site Services grew by

3.3%. In all segments, our growth
reflects the trust that renowned
clients - whether it’s the financial
services group Nomura in London,
UNESCO in Paris, the Ronald Reagan
Presidential Library and Museum
near Los Angeles or the Tokyo
Organising Committee of the
Olympic and Paralympic Games in
2020 - have shown us over the past
year.

Our Benefits and Rewards Services
also performed well, growing by
8.5% overall and our Personal

and Home Services has continued
to expand through an active
acquisition strategy, as evidenced
by the acquisitions of Pronep in
Brazil and The Good Care Group in
the United Kingdom.

We must maintain our momentum
as we are still seeing disparities in
our performance. We have enhanced
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execution on certain large contracts
and our targeting and signing
discipline is improving, though

our client retention and business
development are not where we would
like them to be.

In North America, we are confident
in our new management teams,
notably in our Education and
Healthcare & Seniors segments,

as they take the necessary steps
to revitalize our performance

in this growth market.

Our operating margin for the year

of 5.5% is in line with our objectives.
Thanks to our renewed focus on
operating discipline, we have reduced
our SG&A costs, while still generating
on-site operating productivity

gains. We are focusing on expanding
our Fit for the Future program to
continue optimizing SG&A costs, and
accelerating the roll out of our global
performance management
framework STEP (Sodexo Targets for
Enhanced Performance). We look to
these initiatives to bring further
operating discipline throughout
Sodexo and generate additional
productivity gains.

We are reinvesting these productivity
gains in sales and marketing, training
and talent management, digital

and IT for the greatest impact to
deliver solid and recurring top line
growth. This will enable us to seize
opportunities in our market, valued
at over 900 billion euro, including
300 billion euro for foodservices.

—— WWW.SODEXO.COM



Through our Love of Food culinary
expertise platform, we are staying
ahead of upcoming food trends
that have the potential to become
mainstream. We are pursuing,

for instance, great opportunities
from the rapid growth of
vegetarianism and flexitarianism,
especially among younger
consumers. After launching over
200 plant-based recipes in 2018,
we created, in partnership with
Knorr, Unilever and WWF-UK, over
40 dishes that include 50 ingredients
of the future, which are healthy,
beneficial to biodiversity and

have a lower carbon footprint.

We are introducing these menus
in kitchens globally, and they are
currently available at 5,000 Sodexo
restaurants in Belgium, the United
States, France and the United
Kingdom.

To go even further, we are building
innovative food service concepts
that offer healthy, sustainable food
while reducing waste from farm

to fork. One notable example is

the restaurant we developed with
fashion giant Inditex in Arteixo,

in Spain to feed the company’s
1,600 employees. The menu is

made up of 65% local products from
short supply chains, often coming
directly from the farm, including
over 40 organically farmed products.
The restaurant - operating on a LEED
Gold-certified site - uses no plastic,
and leftovers are systematically
repurposed.

@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

“Our growth is not only an indicator
of our financial performance, it also
reflects the legitimacy of our mission
and the positive impact of Sodexo”

Digital is driving our growth as

we create unique experiences to
meet the needs of clients and
consumers for a simpler, more
personalized service. A good example
can be seen with the acquisition of
Zeta, a digital company specialized
in payment solutions, that allows
us to develop “one-stop” platforms
leveraging synergies across our
business activities. Whether for our
on-site food service offers, with our
restaurant merchant partners, for
managing travel and the related
expenses, or personal services,

with Zeta, we give our clients and
consumers unparalleled freedom

of choice and services. The platform
is currently being rolled out in
Asia-Pacific and we see tremendous
potential for it in all our markets.

| would like to warmly thank our
teams, who have demonstrated
their ability to meet our
commitments and their rigor in
implementing our Focus on Growth
strategic agenda. These efforts
make Sodexo a more solid company
and | am convinced that we are on
the right path to better growth over
the coming years.

Our growth is not only an indicator
of our financial performance, it
also reflects the legitimacy of our
mission and the positive impact of
Sodexo. In a world that is beginning
to understand the limits of hyper
consumption, the impact of human
connections, the reality of social-
economic inequalities and the
urgency of climate change, our
mission to improve quality of life has
never been more relevant. With our
leadership in promoting the full
value of food, making sustainable
and local food more accessible, and
ensuring more inclusive growth
within and across communities,

we are paving the way for a growth
that is profitable and responsible,
putting people first and being more
environmentally sustainable.

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 15
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

ACCELERATE GROWTH

The Executive Committee’s mission is to accelerate Sodexo’s growth
while ensuring that corporate responsibility remains anchored at
the heart of its business. This diverse team combines transversal expertise
and skills representative of all the Group’s activities, segments
and geographic regions.

Denis Machuel
Group Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of the Executive
Committee

Nationality: French

Lorna Donatone

Region Chair
for Latin America

Nationality: American

Sylvia Metayer
Group Chief Growth Officer

Nationalities: French, British
and Canadian
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Nathalie Bellon-Szabo

Chief Executive Officer,
Sports & Leisure worldwide,
On-site Services

Nationality: French

Sean Haley
Group Chief Executive
Officer of Service
Operations

Region Chair, UK & Ireland,
On-site Services

Nationality: British

Sarosh Mistry
Region Chair for North
America, On-site Services

Chief Executive Officer,
Homecare Services
worldwide

Nationality: American

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AS OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2019

Cathy Desquesses

Group Chief
People Officer

Nationality: French

Tony Leech
Chief Executive Officer,

Government worldwide,
On-site Services

Nationality: Australian

Belen Moscoso Del Prado

Group Chief Digital &
Innovation Officer

Nationality: Spanish

Johnpaul Dimech
Chief Executive Officer
Geographic Regions

Region Chair, Asia Pacific,
On-site Services

Nationality: Australian

Satya-Christophe Menard

Chief Executive Officer,
Schools & Universities

worldwide, On-site Services

Nationality: French

Sunil Nayak

Chief Executive Officer,
Corporate Services

worldwide, On-site Services

Nationality: Indian

WWW.SODEXO.COM



@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

- %
g:l’é nationalities U
_— 2
[ ¢
330 48y © @& 3 52,8

Women Non-French Average seniority Average age
Anna Notarianni Marc Rolland
Region Chair, France, Group Chief Financial
On-site Services Officer
Nationality: French Nationality: French
Marc Plumart Dianne Salt

Chief Executive Officer, Group Chief
Healthcare & Seniors Communications Officer

worldwide, On-site Services

Nationality: Canadian

Nationality: French

Didier Sandoz Aurélien Sonet
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Personal & Home Services Benefits & Rewards Services
Nationality: French Nationality: French
Simon Seaton Bruno Vanhaelst
Chief Executive Officer, Group Chief Sales and
Energy & Resources Marketing Officer

worldwide, On-site Services

Nationality: Belgian
Nationality: British

Damien Verdier This year, we bid farewell to a long-serving member of our senior

Group Chief Corporate management team who is retiring, Nicolas Japy.
Responsibility Officer

Under Nicolas’ leadership, Sodexo developed a significant footprint

Neitomaiidy: (ARl in developing markets and in the Energy & Resources segment.

We would like to thank Nicolas for his contribution to Sodexo’s success.

For more details on Sodexo’s Governance, please see Chapter 5.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR CORPORATE OFFICERS" COMPENSATION

A COMPETITIVE
COMPENSATION POLICY

In the interest of Sodexo and its stakeholders and in accordance with
our values, the Board of Directors ensures that the company offers a competitive
remuneration policy to attract and engage the best talent to deliver
performance and achieve Sodexo’s long-term strategy.

CECILE TANDEAU DE MARSAC
Chairwoman of the Compensation Committee

44 Compensation policy is an essential lever for profitable growth. Through a balance between individual
and collective recognition, long term and short term, it aims to strengthen our culture of performance.
Our goal is to attract, motivate, retain and mobilize all our talents for our success. pp

PRINCIPLES FOR COMPENSATION EVOLUTION OF REMUNERATION

FISCAL 2019
Sophie Bellon Denis Machuel
No change * Maximum variable payout reduced from
200% to 150%

* Compensation for full fiscal year
(nominated in January 2018)
o Performance shares: TSR on a peer

ALIGNMENT
OF INTERESTS

ceeeescs e

group only
FISCAL 2020
COMPLETENESS
TRANSPARENCY BALANCE Sophie Bellon Denis Machuel
No change * Removal of exceptional compensation
option

PERFORMANCE Performance shares:

o \lesting period reduced from 4 to 3 years

e No grantin Fiscal 2020

o Next grant in November 2020

 In the exceptional case that rights are

. . . . . maintained on departure, they will be based
The remuneration policy for Executive Committee members is on a pro rata of effective presence

aligned with that of the Chief Executive Officer.

I |

.

COMPENSATION STRUCTURE

100% 75%
NOT SUBJECT TO SUBJECT
PERFORMANCE TO PERFORMANCE
CONDITIONS CONDITIONS

25%

NOT SUBJECT

TO PERFORMANCE
CONDITIONS

50%
PERFORMANCE

SHARES || 250/
ANNUAL
VARIABLE

SOPHIE BELLON DENIS MACHUEL

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

ANNUAL VARIABLE REMUNERATION FOR DENIS MACHUEL

As a reminder, the guidance communicated to the markets on November 8, 2018 for Fiscal 2019 was organic revenue growth of
between 2% and 3% and an underlying operating margin of between 5.5% and 5.7%, excluding currency effect.

COMPENSATION

AMOUNT PAID poLicy
FOR FISCAL 2019 FOR FISCAL 2020
WEIGHT FISCAL 2019 WEIGHT
OFCRITERIA  RESULTS ACHIEVEMENT LEVEL OF CRITERIA
Organic growth* 20% 3.6% 100% 20%

Total variable compensation 100% 99% 100%
*  The organic growth criteria has been capped at 100% despite outperformance during Fiscal 2019, due to the UOP margin performance being at the low end of the guidance
range.
LONG TERM COMPENSATION (PERFORMANCE SHARES) FOR DENIS MACHUEL
FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2020*

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS - 4 YEARS WEIGHT WEIGHT
Organic growth 25% 25%
Underlying operating profit margin excluding currency effect 25% 25%

TSR performance 30% 30%
Share of women at the highest level of hierarchy 20% 20%

* No Fiscal 2020 long-term compensation to take into account reduction of vesting period.

COMPENSATION AWARDED (in thousand euro)

Maximum 4,950
tlib — TArGet
1,836
893
Sophie Bellon  Denis Machuel Chairman CEO
2018-2019 Fiscal 2020 Compensation policy
ixed compensation Annual variable compensation Long term compensation
B Fixed i [ |
:5 Annual variable compensation: E; Long term compensation:
maximum authorized on maximum authorized on
a basis salary of €900,000 a basis salary of €900,000

For more information, see Chapter 5.5.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR EVOLUTION

SUSTAINABLE
AND PROFITABLE GROWTH

Since 1966, Sodexo has been dedicated to the goal of improving
quality of life, convinced of its contribution to both higher
organizational performance and societal progress. This consistent
focus has enabled us to grow profitably and sustainably while
providing continuous development opportunities for our employees.

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT AND 35 countries
Development in Belgium,
ACQUISITIONS Italy, Spain, Africa

and the Middle East

QUALITY 1967 Opening of
OF LIFE First multi-service food;ervlices
in schools
OFFERS AND contract i
for the management of CNES and hospitals
SERVICES (French Space Agency)

in Guyana

KEY MOMENTS

1976
15t meal voucher

40 countries

Development in North America,
South America, Russia

and South Africa

€9.3 m
1966

Sodexo founded
by Pierre Bellon

1965 1970 1975

20 SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

€13 m €1.2 bn

1983 1992

Initial public offering on Creation

the Paris Stock Exchange of the Sodexo
Management
Institute

1980 1985 1990
—— WWW.SODEXO.COM



@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

2019
Sodexo strengthens its presence

in the Homecare market by taking a majority
stake in Pronep in Brazil and the acquisition

of The Good Care Group in the UK

2018
Sodexo becomes a leader

in the Sports & Leisure segment
globally with the acquisition
of Centerplate

Acquisitions:

1995

Gardner Merchant (UK)
Partena (Sweden)

72 countries
Including Brazil,
Ching, India

1998-2001
Marriott Management
Services (U.S.)

€15.3 bn

Acquisitions (2000-2010)
Sogeres and Score Group (France),
Wood Dining Services, Circles,
Comfort Keepers® (USA),
Zehnacker (Germany),
Radhakrishna Hospitality
Services Group (India),

VR (Brazil)

80 countries

EMPLOYEES

CONSOLIDATED
REVENUES

€22 bn

67 countries

SHARE PRICE*
€103.10

New Quality of Life
services: facilities
management services,
vouchers and cards services

2005

Rapid growth in

new markets:
technical maintenance,
energy and water
consumption
efficiency, spatial
planning

Appointment

of Michel

Landel as

Chief Executive Officer

2000 2005

2007
Sarbanes-Oxley
Act conformity,
Section 404

2009
Launch of our corporate
responsibility roadmap

2010

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

2015

Development of integrated Quality
of Life services, for key global accounts.
Explosion in need for in-home services
and offers

2019
Implementation of
the strategic agenda,
Focus on Growth

2016

e Appointment

of Sophie Bellon as
Chairwoman of the Board
of Directors,

on January 26

e Launch of the Sodexo
Ventures fund

2017

Better Tomorrow 2025,
renewing our corporate
responsibility commitments

2018

Denis Machuel
becomes CEO on
January 23

* As of August 31,2018

2019
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Importance for stakeholders

@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

SHARING A COMMON VISION

Our position in the value chain enables us to develop strong relationships
with multiple stakeholders. In 2019, we conducted a second materiality
study to confirm the validity of our corporate responsibility roadmap.
We renewed the process of identification and ranking of key issues
and impacts in consultation with internal and external stakeholders
and the support of Business for Social Responsibility (BSR)™.

Fundamentals @ Individuals Communities @ Environment

1 BSRis a non-profit organization that has been developing sustainable business strategies and solutions through consulting, research, and cross-sector

collaboration for 25 years.
2 GHG: greenhouse gas.

Critical
A
Disclosure and Respect for
Transparency Human Rights
[ ] Business Integrity
. Climate Mitigation, Resilience
Su_pply Chain and GHG® emissions
Environmental
Impact Healthy and Sustainable Eating
Supply Chain Labor Practices @ o o @ Food Quality and Safety
Fundamental [ Food Waste
Rights Packaging and Occupational
at Work Non-organic Health and Safety
Waste
Diversity
Governance and Inclusion
[ )
Women
Empowerment
()
Water and Effluents
Data Privacy Food
. ) and Protection Technology Resource
Antimicrobial Security
Resistance
e o
Animal Welfare Employee Well-being  Local
and Engagement  Socio-economic
® Impact
Stakeholder Collaboration
Employee Training
Hunger and Malnutrition Energy and Development
Y [ J [ J
Talent Attraction
and Retention
Wellness Solutions
]
High Importance for Sodexo Critical

2
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

Update of the issues

The evolution of the major contemporary issues - social, societal
and environmental - as well as the evolution of the market
and the expectations of the various stakeholders led Sodexo to
conduct its second materiality analysis in 2019.

This year, Sodexo not only identified and prioritized the issues
of internal and external stakeholders, but also incorporated two
new dimensions into its process: enterprise risk management
and strategic planning. This improvement provides a relevant
and comprehensive answer to current issues.

Governance, Technology, Data Privacy and Protection and
Disclosure and Transparency are the four new issues introduced
in the 2019 assessment. When compared to the previous study,
Climate Mitigation, Healthy and Sustainable Eating, Food Waste
and Diversity and Inclusion are seen as issues with higher
importance for both stakeholders and Sodexo.

Prioritization of issues

The prioritization of previously defined issues and their impacts
have been established in consultation with internal and external
stakeholders.

Sodexo has involved its employees through numerous
workshops, interviews, surveys and internal data searches of its

clients. The workshops and interviews conducted by BSR brought
together representatives from the Strategy, Communication,
Risk Management, Corporate Responsibility, Marketing, Digital
and Innovation, Human Resources, Purchasing and Investor
Relations teams. Leaders have also provided feedback through
surveys.

Sodexo also sought the views of its external stakeholders.
Interviews were conducted with suppliers, clients and NGO partners.
Lastly, the analysis of external data from investors, rating agencies
and competitors greatly contributed to the assessment of the
importance of the new issues.

Improve the impact on individuals, communities
and the environment

All of the consultations allowed the quantitative and qualitative
assessment of the issues, identified by the Sodexo teams
upstream.

Thirty issues have been clearly defined and prioritized according
to the Sodexo impacts identified in the Corporate Responsibility
Roadmap: Better Tomorrow 2025.

The results of the materiality analysis will optimize the
implementation of our commitments and the management of
the risks associated with the material issues.

CRITICAL ISSUES AND IMPACTS ON BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

RISK
CRITICAL ISSUE KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR MANAGEMENT
See p. 24,
Disclosure of financial and sustainability performance information is clear, 36-39,
comparable, accessible and enables consumers, investors, other stakeholders 236
and management to make informed decisions.
Respect for Human Rights In 2019, 97.4% of workforce working in countries Seep.5,
Commitment to respect human rights throughout the value chain, as well ~ having the Group Human Rights policy available Th, 235,
as practices and procedures aimed at preventing, mitigating and ultimately, 1" dtleast one official language (p. 74). 236
addressing the adverse human rights impacts that may result directly from
Sodexo’s activities or that can be directly related to the business through supplier
relationships.
Climate Mitigation, Resilience and GHG emissions In 2019, 62% reduction in carbon emissions See p. 54,
Action for climate and alignment with the objectives of the Paris agreement ~ intensity - compared to baseline year 2011 76,17,
on climate through the value chain to moderate the impact on climate change, (p.77). 235
increase resilience and adaptability, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and meet
the growing expectations of stakeholders.
In 2019, 98.1% of workforce working in Seep. 5,
The norms and principles that govern the actions and behavior of an individual ~ ¢ountries having the Sodexo Statement of T4, 236
in the business organization regarding the prevention of unfair competition, ~BUSiness Integrity available in at least one
treatment with stakeholders, prevention of corruption, conflicts of interest,  Officiallanguage (p. 74).
confidentidlity, the use of assets, the integrity of the financial statements and
the Group’s files, the responsibilities of the employees and the declaration of
the violations.
Healthy and Sustainable Eating In 2019, 83.3% of On-site Services activity See p. 75,
Health attributes and nutritional provisions of the menus, including reduction prou1fjed Health and W(::t]lness Services including 232
of sugar, salt and fat, as well as additives and portion control; menus that meet physical wellness services (p. 75).
the criteria for sustainable food, especially based on seasonal and local products.
Food Quality and Safety In 2019, 98.6% of On-site Services revenues of See p. 75,
Quality and safety standards respected throughout the value chain of the ~ countries having either 150 9001 or ISO 22000 235
products served. certification for food safety (p. 75).
Food Waste In 2019, 69.2% of Group revenues of countries See p. 52,
Prevention and reduction of food waste through programs, initiatives, innouative ~ Working to deliver on the United Nations’ food 78,235
systems, technologies, awareness raising and behavior, etc. and the application ~ Waste objective (p. 78).
of circular economy principles. Reuse, recycling and recovery of food waste
downstream.
Occupational Health and Safety Sodexo’s employees were absent for an average See p. 44,
Exposure of workers to potential health and safety hazards that may cause ~ ©f 8-3 days, due to occupational accidents or 46, 73,
sickness and/or personal accidents or sickness 235

injury or illness. Risk control defined by global standards, including for specific
risks such as those occurring during a commute.

during Fiscal 2019 (p. 73).

1 GHG: greenhouse gas.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR STAKEHOLDER RELATIONS

The success of Sodexo, a service provider, employer and corporate citizen,
depends on its ability to build enduring relationships with stakeholders
through its numerous programs of responsible action.

SODEXO'’S IMPACT

Employees
Sodexo offers jobs in local communities and training that
promotes career development and internal promotion.

Clients

Sodexo can provide clients with a range of services that directly
impact strategic business issues such as the motivation of their
employees and the competitiveness and attractiveness of their
company.

Consumers

Sodexo is able to improve quality of life for millions of people
by helping consumers adopt healthier and more sustainable
lifestyles.

Suppliers, Affiliated merchants

Sodexo seeks mutually beneficial relationships with its
commercial partners and encourages them to meet its high
standards for quality, working conditions, business integrity
and environmental stewardship.

Institutions and NGOs

Sodexo continues to widen its eco-system to tackle global issues
of working conditions, human rights, diversity and inclusion,
carbon emissions, nutrition, food waste and the fight against
hunger.

Investors

Bellon family share ownership guarantees Sodexo’s
independence and stability. All of our family, institutional and
individual shareholders provide the support necessary for the
Group’s development.

Government and Regulators

Sodexo’s activities are covered by numerous laws in the field
of food safety, health and safety in the workplace, public
procurement, payments, etc.

A large part of its business is contracted with government
entities.
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ACTION TAKEN

From the latest global survey, conducted in Fiscal 2018,
employee engagement rate: 69% up 1 point from the previous
survey.

Good execution, innovation and corporate responsibility are key
factors in Sodexo’s ability to retain and develop relationships
with its clients.

Sodexo’s client retention rate was 93.3% in Fiscal 2019.

92.2% of North America client sites implement actions that
proactively address Sodexo’s 10 Golden Rules of Nutrition,
Health and Wellness.

Sodexo employs 5,138 registered dietitians worldwide.

92.3% of Group revenues are from countries having specific
initiatives to integrate SMEs (Small and Medium Enterprises)
into Sodexo’s Value Chain.

Developing new relationships with a view to advancing the
implementation of the Partner Inclusion Program.

Successful relationships with the Organization for Economic
Co-operation and Development (OECD), the World Wildlife Fund
(WWEF), the International Labour Office (ILO), the United Nations,
the Global Sustainable Seafood Initiative (GSSI), the Seafood
Task Force, Academic institutions such as Harvard, Cornell or
Audencia.

The company is also linked through an International Framework
Agreement with International Union of Food and Allied Workers
(IUF).

Sodexo initiated the creation of the International Food Waste
Coalition (IFWC) and the Global Coalition for Animal Welfare
(GCAW).

Shareholders from around the world choose Sodexo for its solid
growth, the long-term rate of return and its commitment to
Corporate Responsibility.

Launch of Shareholders Club.

Sodexo participates in consultations organized by governments.
Sodexo is registered on the Transparency register of the
European Commission and the European Parliament.

Sodexo conducts an ethical lobbying policy at Group level in all
interactions with politicians and decision-makers.

—— WWW.SODEXO.COM



@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

BETTER TOMORROW 2025:
OUR CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
ROADMAP

Adapted to the challenges of today and tomorrow

and comprised of nine commitments, Better Tomorrow 2025 drives
the deployment of our corporate responsibility actions and measures

theirimpactin the 67 countries where we operate.

Our nine commitments are consistent with the most material issues identified through the Materiality process. They are based
on tangible and measurable objectives that allow all of our entities to monitor and drive progress.

OUR 9 COMMITMENTS AND 2025 OBJECTIVES

&)

OUR IMPACT ON
INDIVIDUALS

&9

OUR IMPACT ON
COMMUNITIES

@)

OUR IMPACT ON
THE ENVIRONMENT

OUR ROLE AS
AN EMPLOYER

Improve
the Quality of Life
of our employees,
safely

80%
Employee
Engagement Rate

Ensure a diverse workforce
and inclusive culture that
reflects and enriches
the communities we serve

100%
of our employees work
in countries that have
gender balance
in their management
populations

Foster a culture of
environmental responsibility
within our workforce and
workspaces

100%
of our employees
are trained
on sustainable practices

©)

OUR ROLE AS
A SERVICE
PROVIDER

Provide and encourage
our consumers to access
healthy lifestyle choices

100%
of our consumers
are offered healthy
lifestyle options
every day

Promote local development
and fair, inclusive
and sustainable
business practices

10 biltion euro
of our business
value will
benefit SMEs®)

Source responsibly
and provide management
services that reduce
carbon emissions

3L

reduction
of carbon emissions®

OUR ROLE AS
A CORPORATE
CITIZEN

Fight hunger
and malnutrition

100 mittion

Stop Hunger
beneficiaries

Drive diversity
and inclusion as a catalyst
for societal change

500,000
women in communities
educated through job
training centers

Champion sustainable
resource usage

50%
reduction in
our food waste

(1) See Chapter 3.2.6.2 (p. 75).

(2) Absolute reduction in Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope 3 carbon emissions, compared to a 2011 baseline.

Better Tomorrow 2025 was developed in accordance with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

The SDGs are a set of global goals in 17 key areas, requiring action by governments, businesses and society to achieve a more just
and sustainable world by 2030. All our commitments are aligned with these goals.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR HUMAN RESOURCES STRATEGY

NURTURING TALENT,
PROMOTING PROFITABLE
GROWTH AND PREPARING

TOMORROW'’S WORKFORCE

As a company of people serving people,
Sodexo recognizes that employees are central to its ability
to create sustainable value and profitable growth.

Sodexo’s human resources
strategy contributes to achieving
its Tong-term growth objectives.

It promotes empowerment,
performance and accountability,
anticipating resource and skill
needs, investing in employee
development and ensuring a safe,
diverse and inclusive working
environment that improves quality
of life and fosters professional
growth. The company’s strategy
enables it to manage the identified
risks for its 410,000 consumer-
and client-facing employees and
its 60,000 managers.

A STRATEGY TO ENHANCE
OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY

To reinforce operational
efficiencies and provide access

to more sustainable employment,
Sodexo leverages personnel
management programs to connect
employees with local job
opportunities.

In response to shortages in skills

and employee turnover, Sodexo

helps employees develop skills
through comprehensive training
programs and the accelerated use

of new technologies. Other initiatives
include new training centers

(see page 50) that enable people

to learn new skills, increasing their
employability and providing the Group

with the right capabilities to deliver
its services. In order to anticipate
workforce needs, Sodexo implements

workforce planning processes and tools.

To ensure fair employment practices
(compensation, data management),
Sodexo is continuously improving

its processes, governance and

tools, including deploying a Human
Resources Information System (HRIS)
starting in 2020.

A STRATEGY TO ENABLE
PROFITABLE GROWTH

To reinforce its performance
culture, Sodexo launched Aspire

in 2019, a simplified performance
assessment and development

tool for its 60,000 managers
worldwide. Aspire links managers’
objectives with the KPIs for the
company’s strategic STEP™
framework. Progress is monitored
through ongoing collaborative and
constructive dialogue and feedback.
A new compensation philosophy
rewards individual contributions

to the company’s collective success
through annual bonus and
performance shares. (See page 49).

Site managers conduct frequent
surveys of their teams as does

the Group on a periodic basis for all
employees. Results are used to form
action plans that address identified
issues and enhance engagement.

1 STEP for Sodexo Targets for Enhanced Performance.

2 2019 Forbes Global 2000 ranking.
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A STRATEGY TO ANTICIPATE

FUTURE NEEDS

To sustain a pipeline of talent needed
to manage its business today

and tomorrow, Sodexo leverages
succession planning, talent reviews and
competency models to help managers
project their future career paths.

Based on the 11 worldwide megatrends
(see pages 10-11), the Human Resources
community is actively evaluating
options for our future of work: evolution
of our roles, leveraging technologies,
new profiles, way of working, etc., in

a fast-changing competitive environment.

#1

France-based private
employer worldwide®

81.6%

Employee retention rate

12.4

Average hours of training
provided annually per
employee
(excluding Germany and the U.S.A.)

—— WWW.SODEXO.COM



@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT
AND MAIN RISKS

Operational managers are the first line of defense for identifying
and managing risks in their area of activity. Support and transversal functions
define the procedures and standards and provide tools and processes for
operational staff to manage the risks. Internal audit makes an independent
assessment of risk management and recommendations for improvement.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS IN THREE LINES OF DEFENSE

BOARD/AUDIT COMMITTEE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE A

A A A

Report Report Inform

FIRST LINE OF DEFENSE SECOND LINE OF DEFENSE THIRD LINE OF DEFENSE

SHOLvYINO3Y
/sSd011aNV 1¥NY3L1x3

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT/ INTERNAL
MANAGEMENT TRANSVERSAL AUDIT
FUNCTIONS

t * |

MAIN RISKS
Each year, a risk profile is established based on the risk assessments carried out by senior management of the main entities and
interviews with senior executives. The following risks are considered the most significant for Sodexo:

MEDIUM HIGH

CONSUMER CENTRIC | Chientretention

sdaing s ]

Client contract execution

Technology and information security
TALENT Talent management and development

Labor shortage
CORPORATE

RESPONSIBILITY Food, services & workplace safety

Environmental impact

Compliance with laws and regulations
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR PROFESSION, OUR MARKETS

IMPROVING
QUALITY OF LIFE:
A UNIQUE ARRAY OF SERVICES

Sodexo believes no asset is more valuable to any business than its people
and that improving their quality of life is key to lasting performance.

An essential partner for companies and organizations, our unmatched offer
of On-site Services helps them to better serve consumers and increase
their efficiency. Our Benefits & Rewards Services and Personal & Home Services
complete our offer to help ensure a better tomorrow for all.

- Corporate Services

- Energy & Resources

- Government & Agencies
- Sports & Leisure

e BUSINESS &
ADMINISTRATIONS

On-site } - Others
Services .
« HEALTH CARE & SENIORS Healthcare
- Seniors
« EDUCATION - Schools
- Universities
Benefits & « EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Rewards }
Services « SERVICES DIVERSIFICATION
o CHILDCARE
Personal &
Home Services } o CONCIERGE SERVICES
« HOMECARE
=
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

On-site Services

Increase a company’s efficiency,
take care for patients in the hospital, promote academic
growth, provide safety and comfort on a remote site:
our services delivered directly on site improve quality of life
for millions of consumers and enable our clients to improve
their performance. From foodservices and the design of workplaces

to the sterilization of medical devices, reception and cleaning services,
our customized, innovative solutions are adapted to our clients’ needs,
organized into three segments: Business & Administrations,
Healthcare & Seniors and Education.

CONSIDERABLE GROWTH POTENTIAL REVENUES BY CLIENT SEGMENT
On-site Services B LUSINESS &
activity market potential®™ ADMINISTRATIONS
is estimated at 550,

HEALTHCARE &
SENIORS
25%

BILLION EDUCATION
EURO® 20%

Sodexo estimate

KEY FIGURES™

il =
96+ 211 455351

of Group revenues billion euro employees
in consolidated
revenues

Source: Sodexo

1 Including Personal & Home Services.
2 Note: Market estimates are likely to evolue over time, given the growing reliability of information sources in various countries.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

On-site Services Corporate Services - Enhancing quality
of life at work

Professional growth and employee quality of life

B U S I N E s s & are drivers of individual and collective performance

for companies as well as key differentiators in

A D M I N I S T R AT I o N s the competition for talent. Sodexo’s solutions help
clients create engaging work experiences, optimize
the equipment employees use and improve the
efficiency of the buildings they occupy. From food
to facilities management services, our solutions
respond to the challenges of company attractiveness,
engagement and operational performance.

REVENUES BY CLIENT
SUB-SEGMENT

Energy & Resources - Ensuring safety, comfort
and performance in harsh environments

Working and living conditions of employees
in onshore and offshore oil and gas, mining,
engineering and construction companies are often

ENERGY & GOVERNMENT & extreme. Sodexo delivers integrated, innovative services
RESOURCES AGENCIES to its clients throughout the world.
12% 11% Hospitality, accommodation, site management,

SPORTS & logistics, transportation and leisure: all services that
LEISURE ensure residents’ quality of life, safety and comfort.
15% While contributing to the development of local
G colmmt'm1t1es, 'our solupgns opt1m12e.gur

CORPORATE 11% clients qperat]ona] eﬁ'leIencyAand abﬂltg to attract

SERVICES and retain talent despite cyclical, volatile markets.
51%

Government & Agencies - Honored to serve
the public interest

Ensuring high-quality services while responding to
budgetary constraints: this is a major challenge
for our clients, whether they are armed forces,
Tocal authorities, national and international
institutions or prisons. Sodexo serves government
personnel, military communities, offenders, and
those who are reintegrating society after prison.

O . . .
f'!';'.‘ From technical maintenance to foodservices, to

the management of complex logistics in peacekeeping
550 operations abroad, to training and reintegration
Yo

KEY FIGURES

assistance to reduce the recidivism rate of offenders
upon release, this wide range of services requires

of On-site Services flexibility, rigor and reliability.

revenues
Sports & Leisure - Delivering unique experiences
and exceptional moments
M Recognized partner of organizers of major sporting
and cultural events and manager of exceptional places
for more than 20 years, Sodexo develops solutions
1 1 577 that meet the expectations of a demanding clientele
’ worldwide. Combining technique and creativity, our
million euro turnkey solutions cover ticketing, travel, foodservices,
in revenues safety, logistics, marketing and technical and artistic
organization. In the digital age, Sodexo helps clients
an to integrate new technologies into their events

M by offering innovative and personalized services.
Multiple benefits that contribute to the success
275 262 of prestigious events such as Royal Ascot, the Super
’ Bowl in the United States, the Tour de France and
the Rugby World Cup, and make exceptional
places shine such as the Eiffel Tower, Lido of Paris,
La Maison Lendtre, Bateaux Parisiens, Yachts de Paris

as well as Bateaux London and the National Gallery
in the United Kingdom.

employees

Source: Sodexo
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

On-site Services

HEALTHCARE &
SENIORS

REVENUES BY CLIENT
SUB-SEGMENT

SENIORS
28%

HEALTHCARE
72%

KEY FIGURES

2 5 %

of On-site Services
revenues

Ll
5,210

million euro
in revenues

D

87,980

employees

Source: Sodexo

Healthcare - Supporting quality care

A market leader for more than 20 years, Sodexo
contributes to the quality of life, well-being and safety
of patients, visitors and healthcare facility staff.

We lead our clients through the changing healthcare
landscape. By providing them with professional

and standardized services, we respond to their
challenges of patient satisfaction and improving
performance. In developing countries, Sodexo also
helps clients meet the rigorous standards required

by international accreditation agencies. Faced with
the growing number of patients being treated in

day hospitals or outpatient units, Sodexo is leveraging
its ability to deliver home-based services to develop
services outside the traditional hospital care
environment.

Seniors - Responding to the challenges
of an aging population

The demographic weight of seniors and the increase
in life expectancy are raising significant societal
challenges. With many seniors remaining independent
longer, the demand for homecare services is growing.
At the same time, the progression of chronic diseases
in the elderly is increasing the workload in nursing
homes. These developments require more and

more solutions to support the senior communities.

To meet these challenges, Sodexo offers a range of
high value-added integrated services designed to
improve the quality of life for seniors in residences
orin a health facility. Adapted for all ages and degrees
of dependence, these services are dedicated to their
physical, moral and social well-being. They also
relieve families, while enhancing the attractiveness
and performance of institutions. With the shortage

of healthcare staff, Sodexo deploys specialized
processes and training to provide its clients with
motivated, qualified employees who perform their

job with kindness.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

On-site Services

EDUCATION

REVENUES BY CLIENT
SUB-SEGMENT

UNIVERSITIES
55%

4L5%

KEY FIGURES

20°/o

of On-site Services
revenues

ol
4,280

million euro
in revenues

D

92,109

employees

Source: Sodexo
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SCHOOLS

Schools - Providing a fulfilling educational
environment

Sodexo supports schools around the world in improving
the quality of life of students by serving nutritious
meals to fuel their performance and delivering
maintenance and operations services to create
healthy, safe learning environments that promote
education and engage faculty and staff. Our expertise
allows us to use better employee training resources,
enhanced processes and leading-edge technology to
deliver savings to communities. We drive responsible
and positive solutions for communities in terms of
procurement, employment and waste management.
Sodexo implements innovative programs to help
schools adopt good environmental practices, educate
students about waste and combat unhealthy eating
habits.

Universities - Enhancing quality of life to recruit,
engage and retain students

With its integrated services model, Sodexo takes

a holistic data-driven approach to improving
performance and enhancing quality of life on campus
and in the community. Sodexo collaborates with
University leaders to support their vision, mission and
goals, creating the best possible student experience
through strategic, sustainable enhancements to the
physical, social and academic environments. From
modern, comfortable student accommodations to
chef-inspired cuisine to beautifully manicured grounds
and clean, safe learning environments, Sodexo is
committed to providing a positive and fulfilling
experience that will boost a university’s ability

to recruit, engage and retain its students.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

Benefits &
Rewards Services

With its range of nearly 250 services,
Sodexo Benefits & Rewards Services (BRS) seeks to unlock
the potential of people and to keep businesses moving forward.

Its offer strengthen employee experience and ease mobility. Driven by
technological innovation, BRS’s Quality of Life solutions go beyond its widely
recognized vouchers and cards and the workplace. Today, it is creating services
that improve engagement, recognition, work-life balance, travel and expense
management, health and well-being. Through its customized guidance and bespoke
offers, BRS is responding to the main human resource challenge companies
and organizations are facing today: increasing employee engagement
to contribute to business success.

KEY FIGURES

at ool PR
Lo, 892 4,901

of Group revenues million euro employees
in revenues
440,000 36 1.3
clients million million affiliated
beneficiaries merchants

and consumers

REVENUES BY REGION

EUROPE, ASIA,
UNITED STATES
57%
LATIN
AMERICA
43%

Source: Sodexo
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

Benefits & Rewards Services

E M p L OY E E E x p E RI E N c E In a particularly competitive environment,

companies must differentiate themselves to

E N H A N c E D B Y attract and retain talent. Today, wages are no

longer enough: quality of life at work, recognition,

E M p L OY E E B E N E F I T S the work environment and work-life balance
are leading clients to demand innovative and
personalized solutions to improve the quality of daily
life of their employees and reinforce engagement
and motivation; this also contributes to improved
company performance.

From Meal Pass to the Sport Pass, our solutions
encourage hedlthier lifestyles, promote a better
work-life balance and facilitate personal development.

Sodexo also offers companies services designed
to enhance the efforts of their employees:
incentive and recognition programs; professional
development tools such as training, mentoring
and coaching. These solutions help unite teams
around common objectives, recognize their work
and reward their efforts.

M 0 B I L I TY A N D E x p E N S E Business travel, the associated expenses

and daily commutes can be complex for businesses

AT T H E H E A RT to manage. For employees, these mobility issues are

often stressful, with potential impacts on efficiency,

0 F s E RV I c E S motivation and even health.

Sodexo offers simple and easy-to-access solutions

D I V E R S I F I c AT I 0 N via unique platforms including fuel cards, Mobility
Pass, which covers travel expenses between home
and work, travel booking and management of
business expenses.

Advantageous solutions for companies to help
them better manage their employees’ travel and
business expenses by ensuring real-time visibility
but also for employees in helping to simplify their
movements and improve their quality of life.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

Personal & Home
Services

Sodexo offers a range of Personal & Home Services that respond to
demographic trends and contemporary lifestyles.
Present at each key stage of life, our services cover three areas: Childcare services,
designed to take care of the youngest children while making life easier for parents;

Concierge services, to enhance the development and well-being of our clients” employees
in the workplace; Home care services, to make life easier for seniors and adults who want
to maintain their independence while enjoying the comfort of their home.

Childcare

Sodexo responds to one of the main concerns of parents in France and Germany: finding care for their pre-school
children. Real alternatives to traditional childcare facilities that are often full and poorly adapted to the time
constraints of active parents, our structures have been designed to improve the quality of life of children and
their parents.

Concierge Services

With its corporate concierge services, Sodexo helps companies to make their employees’ daily life easier.
Booking a restaurant, running errands, finding a plumber... employees of our corporate clients can benefit
from a broad range of services at their workplace that improve their well-being, helping to strengthen their
commitment and performance.

Home Care

With their population increasing around the world, seniors today are healthier and want to stay at home

as long as possible. To enhance their independence and quality of life at home, Sodexo offers personal assistance
and support solutions in Brazil, Germany, France, Norway and the UK, such as carrying groceries, preparing
balanced meals, assisting with travel or basic nursing care.
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(1) UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR KEY FIGURES

MEASURING
OUR PERFORMANCE

Sodexo’s Fiscal 2019 operating performance was marked
by an increase in organic growth.

OUR FINANCIAL KEY FIGURES

EVOLUTION OF CONSOLIDATED REVENUES
AND ORGANIC GROWTH

21,954

20,698
' 20,407
19,815 20,245

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Group consolidated revenues
in millions of euro

@® Organic growth
in percentage

REVENUES BY ACTIVITY AND CLIENT SEGMENT

L%
BENEFITS & REWARDS
SERVICES

20%

Education

32%
Facilities
Management
services

96%
ON-SITE
SERVICES*

64%
Foodservices

55%
Business &
Administrations

25%
Healthcare &
Seniors

* Including Personal and Home Services.

For more information see Chapter 3.
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ON-SITE SERVICES REVENUES BY REGION

EUROPE
39%
8,129

NORTH
AMERICA

45%

9,572 million euro

million euro

AFRICA,
ASIA,
AUSTRALIA,
LATIN AMERICA &
MIDDLE EAST
16%

3,366 million euro

)

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE CORPORATE
EXPENSES & INTRAGROUP ELIMINATION BY ACTIVITY
AND CLIENT SEGMENT

21% 79%
BENEFITS & REWARDS ON-SITE SERVICES*
SERVICES

46%
Business &
Administrations

21%

Education

33%
Healthcare &
Seniors
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(1) UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT
AND OPERATING MARGIN

1,340

1,226

1,165 1,200

5.5%

Fiscal Fiscal
2018 2019

® Operating margin
in percentage

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2015 2016 2017

Underlying operating profit
in millions of euro

NET DEBT AS A PERCENTAGE OF SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY* AND CASH CONVERSION

38%

136%

Fiscal
2018

Fiscal
2017

Fiscal
2016

Fiscal
2015

Fiscal
2019

* Debt net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and financial
assets related to Benefits & Rewards Services activity, less bank
overdrafts.

SODEXO SHARE PRICE TREND FROM SEPTEMBER 1, 2018
THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2019

SODEXO: *15%
cacko: *+1%

SHAREHOLDERS AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

55.7%
PUBLIC
40.6% L2.2%
FOREIGN BELLON SA
INSTITUTIONAL
SHAREHOLDERS
1.1%
EMPLOYEES*
11% 1%
FRENCH TREASURY
INSTITUTIONAL ’._1 n/o SHARES
SHAREHOLDERS INDIVIDUALS

Source: Nasdaq

* Including shares resulting from restricted share plans held in registered
form by employees and still subject to a lock-up period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE, DIVIDEND PER SHARE AND
PAY-OUT RATIO

4.85

4.60 4.56

4.40

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Earnings per share Dividend per share @ Operating profit

in euro in euro in percentage

* Dividend subject to approval at the January 21, 2020 Shareholders
Meeting.

TSR (TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN)

+10.7% per year over the past five fiscal years

Market price at the end of the period
- market price at the beginning of the period
+ dividends paid over the period

Market price at the beginning of the period

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT




(1) UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

OUR EXTRA-FINANCIAL KEY FIGURES

Adapted to the challenges of today and tomorrow and comprised of nine commitments, Better Tomorrow
2025 tracks the deployment of our corporate responsibility actions and measures their impact in the
countries where we operate.

n Improve quality of life for our employees, safely

As the number one France-based private employer worldwide™, employing over 470,000 people from diverse backgrounds,
we are committed to being an employer of choice.

Employees worldwide ... in a safe work environment

END OF YEAR WORKFORCE e 0.86 lost time injury rate for fiscal 2019

460,663 470,237
422,844 425,594 427,268 Also see Chapter 3.2.4.1.
Investment in employee development
TRAINING (FISCAL 2019)
e 12.4 average hours of training provided annually per
employee (excluding Germany and the U.S.A.)

INTERNAL PROMOTION RATES BY CATEGORY
(FISCAL 2019)

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal On-site employees

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Engaged employees Off-site employees

For total workforce

81.6%
Absenteeism

87.2% ,
Sodexo’s employees were absent for an average of 8.3 days, due

to occupational accidents or sickness and/or personal accidents
or sickness during Fiscal 2019.

For site managers

e 69% Employee engagement rate (+1 point)®

Ensure a diverse workforce and inclusive culture that reflects and enriches
the communities we serve

WORKFORCE BY GENDER AND BY CATEGORY (AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019)

people people people people people

65% o
60% 63% .
56% 55%
45%
0
0% 35% 37%
Bord Executive Group Management Employees
of Directors@ Committee Managers®

I Women Il Men @ Excluding employee representatives °® Objective: women 40% of Group Senior Executives

1 2019 Forbes Global 2000 ranking.

2 2018 employee engagement survey sent to 386,262 Sodexo employees of whom 62% responded.
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@ UNLOCKING OUR POTENTIAL

Foster a culture of environmental
responsibility within our workforce
and workspaces

e 97.6% of Group revenues from countries employing
environmental experts

Provide and encourage our
consumers to access healthy
lifestyle choices

e 92.2% of North America client sites implement actions
that proactively address Sodexo’s 10 Golden Rules of
Nutrition, Health and Wellness

Promote local development,
fair, inclusive and sustainable
business practices

e 95,7% of spend with contracted suppliers having signed
Sodexo’s Supplier Code of conduct.

e 5.5 billion euro of our business value benefiting SMEs

Source responsibly and provide
management services that reduce
carbon emissions

e 80.3% of sustainable fish and seafood of total of fish and
seafood procured

Source : Sodexo

Fight hunger
and malnutrition

e More than 1 million euro invested in programs to
empower women working to end hunger in their communities

e 122,000 volunteers committed

e 1 U.S. dollar given equals 1 U.S. dollar invested in the
fight against hunger.

Drive diversity and inclusion as
a catalyst for societal change

e 93.8% of Group revenues of countries with initiatives to
improve the quality of life of women

Champion sustainable
resource usage

e 69.2% of Group revenues of countries working to deliver
on the United Nations’ food waste objective

BETTER TOMORROW For more information,

see Chapter 3.2.

OBJECTIVES

Disclosure and Transparency

At Sodexo, we believe that disclosure of financial and sustainability performance information, in a clear, comparable
and accessible manner, enables consumers, investors, other stakeholders and company management to make informed
decisions. Since Sodexo’s creation, our financial, social, societal and environmental performance has been publicly
disclosed through our Universal Registration Document. To ensure transparency, the information and indicators have
been audited by an independent third party for each of the past seven years.

Sodexo has been the industry leader of the Dow Jones Sustainability Index for the past 15 years and holds Gold Standard

certification from EcoVadis.
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GROWING

With the size of our potential markets and our leadership in
multiple domains - including foodservices and facilities management,
our commitment to social and environmental responsibility, innovation
and the leveraging of digital technologies - the opportunities for growth
are considerable. To capture these opportunities, our strategic agenda
is focused on returning to sustained growth through four pillars: being
client and consumer centric, enhancing operational efficiency, nurturing
talent and anchoring corporate responsibility in everything we do.

]
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Being client Enhancing

and consumer operational
centric efficiency
p.42 p.45

Empowerment
and
Accountability

Nurturing Anchoring
talent corporate
P48 responsibility

p.51
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

Being client
and consumer
centric

Sodexo has adopted a focused approach to client

and consumer centricity to achieve its growth and profitability objectives.

Essential for anticipating the needs of our clients and retaining them, this approach also
allows us to better understand their markets and to differentiate our services from those of

our competitors. Through constant innovation, the Group develops and refines its service
offers to respond to consumer expectations and client challenges, whether local or global,

throughout the world and across all of its segments and activities. The broad range

of Quality of Life services Sodexo teams deliver to consumers helps clients improve

their performance, optimize costs, achieve operational efficiencies and drive
employee engagement. From Paris’ premier tourist destination to the most remote
regions of Australia, Sodexo’s response is the same:
putting the identified needs of clients and consumers first!

ool A
93.3% 100 32%

Sodexo client million of On-site Services revenues
retention rate consumers served by generated through facilities
Sodexo teams worldwide management services
each day

i3
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

NEW GASTRONOMICAL OFFERING TO MATCH
THE IRON LADY’S STATURE

Enhancing the visitor experience at the Eiffel Tower

In partnership with two celebrated chefs and the startup Ubudu®™ , Sodexo is creating a spectacular new culinary experience,

to delight visitors at one of the world’s most iconic monuments.

Who says you can’t improve on an icon like the Eiffel Tower, which celebrated its 130%™ anniversary in 2019 and is visited

by six million people each year?

The Umanis consortium, led by Sodexo, was awarded a new 10-year foodservices contract in 2018 by Société d'Exploitation
de la Tour Eiffel (SETE). The challenge is daunting: to give visitors a culinary experience that lives up to this undisputed showcase

of French know-how.

REFRESHING THE VISITOR EXPERIENCE

Sodexo combines its expertise

in delivering foodservices at
exceptional venues, partners with

two Michelin-starred chefs, Frédéric
Anton and Thierry Marx each aspect

of the visitor experience, from the
design of dining areas to the culinary
offer and a regionally-anchored
socio-environmental approach.

The objective is clear: to reinvent

the reception and itinerary for visitors
that highlights the excellence of French
cuisine and the quality of Paris regional
products. The initiative encompasses
all of the site’s dining offers: the Jules
Verne, under the control of Frédéric
Anton; the Brasserie, managed by
Thierry Marx; the Bistro; the Champagne
Bar; and the new Gustave Eiffel lounge,
catering to business professionals.
Finally, the carry-out on the Tower’s
forecourt is enriched with an original
mobile offer, developed with Ubudu,
featuring digital ordering and delivery
of seasonal products by scooters.

AN ENVIRONMENTALLY RESPONSIBLE,
SUSTAINABLE APPROACH

Sodexo’s expertise in eco-responsible
practices (sustainable purchasing
charter signed with suppliers,
minimization of packaging materials)
led to the design of an ambitious and
differentiating environmental plan,
reinforced by the personal commitment
of the partner chefs, both recognized
for their actions promoting local cuisine
and low-waste food production.

Sodexo also created the “Artisans

Guild of the Eiffel Tower’ a network

of Paris region artisans selected

for their remarkable know-how and
their eco-responsible commitment.
Guild members, selected by a panel
chaired by Thierry Marx, offer their
finest local and seasonal products

Sky-high goals for the next
10 years:

+ 3509,

in total revenues

+5009%

in the number of consumers
served each year

to the monument’s visitors. This
original initiative provides another
opportunity to highlight how the best
of local expertise contributes
economically and socially to

the Tower’s ecosystem.

“I am delighted that the Sodexo-led
Umanis consortium is supporting

us in this project, alongside Frédéric
Anton and Thierry Marx, two iconic
and talented chefs. Our collective
ambition is to reinvent the experience
of visitors to the Tower, making it

a gastronomic destination in its own
right and a showcase of culinary
excellence.”

Patrick Branco Ruivo
General Manager of the Eiffel Tower
operating company (SETE)

1 Ubudu, a partner of the Umanis Group, offers operational efficiency solutions through a platform combining advanced geo-location technologies.
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

REMOTE LIFELINE FOR CONSUMERS AND CLIENTS

Facilitating daily life, MyWay App connects resident communities

On remote sites in Australia, Sodexo’s new app is enhancing quality of life for residents while helping clients ensure a safer,

more engaging environment.

In an increasingly connected world, feelings of isolation are becoming a thing of the past, even for employees of companies
operating in some of the world’s most remote locations. Whether they work on an offshore platform or a mine site, residents can

now access real-time information and services with a few clicks on their mobile phone.

QUALITY OF LIFE AT THE ENDS
OF THE EARTH

Sodexo conceives MyWay App using a
consumer-centric design methodology
to understand user expectations

and needs. A set of standard and
customized features facilitates site
entry, life on site and departure,
ordering of meals and retail items,
activity reservations, maintenance
requests, incident reporting/tracking
and communication between team
members.

Users benefit from information on
the site’s health and fitness offerings,
regular communication on balanced
eating and Sodexo’s Mindful program,
which helps them make informed

B AND ALSO_

choices to achieve their fitness and
leisure goals without having to sacrifice
quality or taste.

MyWay App also responds to client
needs by facilitating dialogue with
residents and generating valuable data
on their satisfaction levels. This in turn
helps pinpoint opportunities to improve
quality and services that are critical to
maximizing employee engagement.

MY SAFETY

MyWay App will soon include features to
enhance safety management. Through
the app, users will be able to instantly
report hazards and safety issues and
upload photos. Site managers will use it
to send safety alerts and communicate

other urgent/critical safety messages
to residents. In the event of severe
weather, for example, residents will be
quickly notified of hazardous conditions
via MyWay App and provide immediate
feedback on their situation and need
for help. The app’s locator function will
enable emergency assistance to be
rapidly directed to the right location.
Following the 2019 launch at Sodexo
sites in Australia, MyWay App is

being rolled out to client sites in more
countries in Fiscal 2020.

19

sites in Australia
where MyWay App
is deployed

(7,453

people have downloaded
MyWay App

9,199

service requests
from 20% of users

DIGITAL COMMUNITY

To help clients to better anticipate and respond to their consumers’ needs, Sodexo’s concierge services subsidiary Circles
launched an innovative digital platform in 2019 called the Digital Community Manager. This platform perfectly satisfies the
personal, local and professional needs of consumers. The Digital Community Manager connects users to their organization’s
community, the local community and the Sodexo community of services and events. Part of a multichannel strategy, the
platform enlivens daily life of communities by reinforcing a sense of belonging and social responsibility for users, whether for
employees in a company, students on a campus or seniors in a retirement home.
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

Enhancing
operational
efficiency

To reinvigorate growth, efficient execution is key.
Sodexo has launched initiatives across dall of its businesses and segments
to enhance food and labor productivity and simplify the organization,
in order to free-up financial capacity to accelerate the launch of new offers,
digital solutions and sales and marketing efforts.
At the heart of the Group’s strategy is the STEP (Sodexo Targets for Enhanced
Performance) framework, designed to drive operational performance at site,
country, regional and global levels through consistent language and common
operational indicators. Innovative programs tailored to the specific characteristics
of our business such as | PROMISE for On-site Services or Rydoo for Benefits &
Rewards Services contribute to improving operational efficiency.

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT 45




46

(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

DELIVERING ON OUR PROMISE

Continuous improvement initiative in On-site Services

In order to provide an ever more efficient response to its clients and consumers, Sodexo is deploying | PROMISE,
an innovative digital program that enables site management teams to involve all employees in a process of continuous
improvement while promoting the exchange of best practices.

Through | PROMISE, site and regional managers implement new processes, tools and innovative solutions that allow them to
improve their performance and enhance client satisfaction. Also designed to free up time, this approach supports one

of Sodexo’s strategic objectives: to improve operational efficiency.
Site managers collaborate online to share ideas with their peers and use engaging and interactive tools, such as a simulation
game combining short videos and quizzes to identify good and bad situations on sites and a digital journey with 10 missions

focusing on operational excellence.

SHIFTING TO HIGHER VALUE-ADDED
ACTIVITIES

| PROMISE makes it possible to

ensure conformity of services with
contractual commitments and to
determine opportunities for progress
and associated risks.

Another key objective is the elimination
of activities that do not add value

for the client or contribute to Sodexo’s
profitable growth. By reducing

the administrative burden, this frees
managers to focus on innovative

15 countries

deployed: Argentina, Brazil,
Canada, Chile, Colombia, Finland,
France, India, Ireland, Norway,
Peru, Spain, Sweden, UK, U.S.

1,300

sites by the end of Fiscal 2019

+125

best practices and innovations
available online through
INNOV'hub intranet

1.5hr

Average time savings per week
reported by site managers

approaches that benefit the client.

The | PROMISE toolkit includes visual
management tools™ to enable the team
to progress, lean management tools®
to improve productivity, best practices
sharing and benchmarking with similar
sites.

| PROMISE is supported by a reward and
recognition program to motivate Sodexo
employees to continuously increase

the value they provide clients and to
highlight the best innovations.

PROMISING RESULTS

Following the roll-out of | PROMISE to
1,300 sites as of the end of Fiscal 2019,
thousands of action plans had been
launched and Lean Management tools
were being deployed. Site managers
reported freeing up an average of

90 minutes per week to focus their
attention on adding value for clients
and provided highly positive feedback
on the benefits of sharing best
practices.

A new way of thinking and a reinforced
culture of continuous improvement is
taking hold.

“Nestlé needed to make a significant
step change with how we could deliver
better value FM and workplace services
without sacrificing the employee
experience. We knew we needed to
harness Lean thinking using the scale
and experience of Sodexo to assist with
this goal. We believe that | PROMISE can
be the tool that delivers that goal by
promoting operational excellence and
service innovations.”

Martin Bell

Global FM Operations Management,
Nestlé Global Business Services

1 Visual managementis a management method that uses visual information to drive objectives.
2 Lean management is a system of work organization and management to improve the quality and profitability of a company’s production by avoiding

the waste of its resources.

m AND ALSO_

PROTECTING OUR PEOPLE

For Sodexo, the health and safety of
its employees is a fundamental issue
that requires a process of continuous
improvement.

To maintain health and safety

standards at the highest level, Sodexo

has put in place a global HSE® “Zero

Harm” program. Sodexo Safety Nets

are based on a risk prevention approach

supported by a dynamic risk assess-
ment tool, “3 Checks For Safety””

Sodexo’s behavior safety program is

built around four strategic enablers

of our “Zero Harm” mindset:

e Leadership: safety depends
on a culture where everyone
understands and takes
responsibility for their own
health and safety and that of
their colleagues, clients and
consumers.

e Communications &
Engagement: as the working
environment and business
changes, communicating and
engaging with teams, clients
and suppliers is increasingly
important.

e Training & Competence:
Everyone must have the right
training and competencies,
coupled with the right tools and
equipment to ensure quality,
safe and efficient services.

o Compliance & Learning:
Sodexo has put in place
mandatory compliance standards.
Incidents and accidents are
reported using a global HSE
tool, Salus. An investigation
is conducted for any serious
accident and teams are
encouraged to identify new and
more effective ways of working.

3 Health, Safety and Environment (HSE): for Sodexo, the scope of HSE includes occupational health and safety, food safety and the environment.
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

SIMPLIFYING MANAGEMENT OF BUSINESS TRIPS

Rydoo confirms its strong growth

Launched in June 2018, Rydoo grew its revenues by 40% in Fiscal 2019 and now has more than 680,000 users in
62 countries. The business travel and expense management application aims to become one of the world leaders in

the sector.

Rydoo simplifies the lives of employees and organizations by offering a “one-stop-shop” solution combining business travel

and expense management: thanks to its integrated approach, Rydoo covers all employee needs, whether it is booking travel or
managing expense reports. Sodexo made the first demonstration through an internal deployment of the SaaS®™ solution, which
achieved an average adoption rate of 93% in its first month.

FLEXIBILITY AND CUSTOMIZATION

Rydoo is a unique solution that

each company can adapt to its

needs, thanks to its complementary
modules. The mobile application allows
employees to manage their business
expenses from a simple photo or to
easily book a trip, in accordance with
the company’s travel policy. This way,
everyone within the organization can
focus on what really matters and forget
about paper expense reports.

Thanks to its centralized payment
system, employees no longer have

to advance their travel expenses

and financial services receives only

a monthly invoice for all trips made,
along with a consolidated report.

This complete automation, highly
appreciated by the Finance Department,
translates into real savings: Rydoo
reduces the cost of processing business
expenses by 87%.

Financial Departments have an
accurate visibility on the incurred costs.
Finally, its business model, based on
the number of active users, allows
better control of budgets and offers

a scalable solution to organizations.
Rydoo’s success is in line with the
dynamic business travel market,

which is expected to approach

30 billion euro in France in 2019

and reach 1,550 billion euro worldwide
by 2022.

A CUSTOMER’S EXPERIENCE:
LAVAZZA UK

Present in more than 90 countries,

the Italian coffee leader, Lavazza,

chose Rydoo to digitize the
management of the expense reports

of its UK-based itinerant sales teams.
Its objective: to replace an aging
system of forms designed via Excel files,
manually filled-in, and to eliminate

1 SaaS: Software as a Service

paperwork maintained by employees.
The mobile solution and the digitization
of receipts made it easier to analyze
expenses and track advances.

The speed and frequency of
reimbursement of employees has
increased. Lavazza UK’s IT Department
appreciated the ease with which Rydoo
was deployed and quickly adopted by
users. The feedback from employees
was also extremely positive, underlining
the very intuitive use of the solution.

“The huge advantage is that everyone,
wherever they are, can submit

their expenses in no time and that
their approval is just as fast via the
application. The mobile solution was
decisive for us in terms of accessibility.”

Mark Mathews
IT Director, Lavazza UK

L0

Revenue growth in Fiscal 2019

8,200

clients

680,000

users

4.4/5

User satisfaction rate

(G2 Crowd)

Ranked in the Top 100 B2B
Software of G2 Crowd, leading
user testing platform
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Nurturing
talent

Sodexo’s employees - designers and providers of

the company’s services to its clients - are central to its offer,

culture, success and future growth.
To maintain excellence in service quality while ensuring long-term
profitable growth, Sodexo focuses on three major challenges: reinforcing
a performance-based culture based on shared priorities and indicators, anticipating
needs in terms of resources, skills and competencies and offering training,

learning and development opportunities at all levels.

Convinced that a safe, motivating and open work environment fosters individual
commitment and collective performance, the Group is fully committed to diversity
and inclusion, integrity and the continual reinforcement of health and safety.
Fiscal 2019 initiatives reflect the company’s commitment to nurturing
the potential of the talent on which it depends and that will shape its future.

il B
0.86 12.4 11

Lost time injury rate Average hours Consecutive years in which Sodexo
of training provided has been listed by Diversitylnc
annually per employee among the Top companies for
(excluding Germany LGBT Employees, for Talent
and the U.S.A)) Acquisition for Women of Color

and for Executive Women

i3
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

REINFORCING A PERFORMANCE CULTURE

New compensation policy

Sodexo introduced a new compensation policy for its 60,000 managers in 2019 to better differentiate and reward individual
contributions to the Group’s collective success. The objective: promote the empowerment and accountability indispensable to

Sodexo’s growth.

To empower managers and reward them for their contribution to the company’s results, Sodexo bases its compensation on a
philosophy of paying for performance. The objective is to reward results and to promote behaviors that foster sustainable and
profitable growth. This policy is based on sharing the collective value created to reward each person’s individual contribution.
Compensation policies and programs are intended to be straightforward and transparent, grounded in globally consistent
principles and guidelines that are adapted to specific local factors. A key focus is empowerment of the line manager.

COMPENSATION COMPONENTS

Base pay is the fixed part of the
compensation package which
compensates employees for the
sustainable contribution they provide
to the organization. It is benchmarked
to enable Sodexo to attract and retain
required talent and evolves based on
job proficiency, skills, behaviors and
potential.

Short-term incentives include an
annual variable performance bonus,
awarded based on the achievement of
set objectives. Based on a combination
of individual and collective performance,
bonuses are intended to compensate
people for taking smart risks, “walking
the extra-mile” and achieving
outstanding performance.

Long-term incentives are provided
mainly in the form of performance
shares, granted to a limited number
of individuals holding positions with a

g AND ALSO |

EMPLOYEE ROLE IN DIGITAL
TRANSFORMATION RECOGNIZED

Sodexo’s commitment to preparing
its employees to be part of the
Group’s digital transformation was
recognized with a Brandon Hall HCM
Excellence award. Its global Digital
Passport learning program was
designed by employees themselves
to develop the right mind-set, skills
and specialization to accelerate
the digital transformation at all
of the company’s operational
levels. The Excellence Awards
recognize organizations that have
successfully deployed transformative
programs, strategies and processes
that have contributed to company
performance.

significant impact on business results
and/or demonstrating an outstanding
engagement and performance over
time and/or with recognized potential
and expectations for the future.
Sodexo’s new compensation policy
expands the attribution of performance
shares, previously reserved for senior
executives, to managers with high
potential and outstanding performance.

A HOLISTIC APPROACH

Benefits, as flexible as possible to
match specific employee needs, are
also part of the total reward package
and a key element of Sodexo’s quality
of life employer promise. They include
tangible non-monetary reward elements
such as health insurance, retirement
or pension plans, life or disability
insurance and other benefits.

Each reward component is considered
in terms of the business’s ability to

7 %

of performance share
recipients in 2019 do not hold
senior management roles

finance it. Fundamental to an effective
compensation policy is its equity and
fairness and a recognition that it truly
results in the differentiation of people
based only on their contribution and
behaviors.

The objective: engaged, motivated and
high-performing teams that contribute
to a results-oriented culture that
creates value for clients and consumers.
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DEVELOPING SKILLS, OFFERING OPPORTUNITIES

Foodservices Apprenticeship Training Center launched in France

To address worker and skills shortages in the foodservices industry, Sodexo joined with Accor, The Adecco Group and Korian in
launching a joint apprenticeship training center in March 2019, to open in 2020. The center will enable people in France with
few qualifications to learn new skills, increasing their employability and providing the business with the resources it needs to
deliver its services.

The initiative leverages a new law in France facilitating the creation of such centers by companies, alone or in partnership with
other companies. Sodexo and its partners, all leaders in their market, joined forces to enhance the image of the foodservices
sector and address labor and skills shortages.

The partners’ shared objectives are to increase the industry’s attractiveness, particularly to young people, by offering a
qualifying training path with a twofold objective: to boost employment through skills training targeted to industry needs and to
contribute to the performance and growth of the partner companies.

TEACHING SOFT SKILLS

In addition to raising awareness

and the image of foodservices
professions, the center will allow

the companies to define the
educational content and adapt it

to their needs.

Beyond technical skills, this includes
imparting knowledge of workplace
health and safety issues as well as
developing the soft skills that are
critical in consumer-facing jobs,
such as a sense of service and
hospitality or empathy as well as
the ability to work as a team, a topic
of particular focus.

More than

11,00

employees hired
for foodservices jobs by
the 4 partner companies

in 2018
THREE PRIORITY AUDIENCES employment market and promote
Apprentices will benefit from employee development in partner

companies.
1 O O O the diversity of skills required by 'p ] ]
l 4 four different industry sectors and This center will enable us to define
; ; ; the curriculum to respond to our
s innovative teaching methods.
participants Scheduled to begin in early 2020, business needs, including focusing

per year in initial training the training programs, for both initial on soft skills that are essential to

through apprenticeship or and continuing education, have interactions with consumers.”
continuing training three goals: to attract young people, Anna Notarianni
offer qualifying training courses to Sodexo Region Chair, France,
people that have separated from the On-site Services
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

Anchoring
corporate
responsibility

Sodexo’s commitment to corporate responsibility is a source of differentiation
that drives employee engagement and responds to stakeholder expectations.
These include rising awareness of the impact of food choices on health, the amount
of food wasted globally and economic disparity in communities.

Through its corporate responsibility roadmap, Better Tomorrow 2025,
the company fosters diversity and inclusion and takes action in a number of areas,
from developing and advocating healthy and sustainable eating
choices to sourcing locally and inclusively.

Among its areas of particular focus are two highlighted in this report:
reducing its carbon footprint and ensuring the waste reduction on sites.

i &
5,121,136 5.5 56.2%

tons of CO, billion euro of total of shell eggs
Scope 3 Supply Chain of Sodexo business value purchased by Sodexo are
carbon emissions benefiting SMEs cage free shell eggs
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FOOD SHOULD BE EATEN, NOT WASTED

Sodexo extends its leadership in fighting food waste

Sodexo is deploying innovative technology at its sites around the world to achieve its goal of halving food waste and losses

in its operations by 2025.

The Group extended its efforts to fight against food waste by announcing in May 2019 the deployment of a data-driven

food waste prevention program, WasteWatch by Leanpath®, at 3,000 sites within one year.

The Group’s program for preventing food waste incorporates smart food waste measurement technology which enables
Sodexo teams to easily and rapidly capture food waste data and identify what is being wasted and why. Teams are then able
to implement targeted operational and behavioral changes to eliminate avoidable waste generated by kitchens or disposed by
consumers. On average, the program has been shown to be effective in reducing food waste by 50% on the sites on which

it has been deployed.

DEPLOYMENT EXAMPLE

In March 2018, a site in Singapore
implemented WasteWatch beginning
with training sessions for Sodexo
employees and end users, followed by
a trial run using the new equipment.
As the program was fully implemented,
initiatives were introduced to reduce
trim waste during food preparation
and raise awareness with students to
reduce post-consumer waste. Daily
production planning has helped reduce
food waste from overproduction and
chefs are contributing new ideas to
further reduce food waste. WasteWatch
implementation has helped the client
meet its sustainability goals and
generated a strong positive response
from the team and the surrounding
school community.

FIGHTING PLASTIC WASTE IN OCEANS

Single-use plastics have traditionally
been a staple of the Food services
industry due to their ability to preserve
food, and so reduce food waste.

At the same time, it pollutes oceans,
harming marine life wildlife and the
wider environment. To reduce its
dependence on plastics, Sodexo has
implemented innovative packaging
and recycling solutions that are more
environmentally friendly - reusable
materials, bioplastics, organic
materials. We have committed

to reducing single-use plastics in

15 countries that represent around 70%
of our revenues.

“Our goal is to prevent food waste
throughout the value chain and
empower other stakeholders to join

this effort. Collaboration is the most
effective way to reduce food waste but
it’s also the most challenging.”

Damien Verdier
Group Chief
Corporate Responsibility Officer

' Leanpath is the global leader in food waste measurement and prevention.
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(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

REDUCING CARBON EMISSIONS

Sodexo collaborates with its clients and suppliers to help them to achieve
their sustainability goals

Sodexo has been working with the World Wildlife Fund (WWF) to measure and reduce the Group’s carbon footprint since
2010. As part of its Better Tomorrow 2025 roadmap, the Group tracks progress toward achieving its 2025 objective to
reduce carbon emissions by 34%.

Sodexo has achieved significant carbon emissions reductions in Scope 1 and 2 (direct GHG™ emissions from the combustion
of energy and electricity). However, there is far greater potential to improve environmental outcomes through the reduction
of Scope 3 carbon emissions (indirect emissions), which represent most of the Group’s footprint. Sodexo therefore revised its
methodology to calculate and capture emissions reductions achieved in its supply chain.

In May 2019, Sodexo submitted its 34% carbon emissions reduction objective for official validation by the Science-Based
Target initiative (SBTi), in line with the most recent climate data and a warming trajectory limited to +1.5° C. This target was
validated by the SBTiin July 2019.

EMISSIONS REDUCTION RESPONSIBLE SOURCING AND LOCAL AND SMALL Sodexo places a strong focus on
INITIATIVES BUSINESS ENGAGEMENT supporting local and small businesses
In addition to its food waste Today, more than half of Sodexo’s and suppliers who promote sustainable
prevention program, Sodexo is carbon emissions come from our supply agricultural practices, such as organic
taking a number of actions to reduce chain, primarily from carbon intensive dairy products supplier, Triballat Noyal,
its environmental impact, as well as commodities such as beef, dairy, which prioritizes use of renewable
that of its clients and suppliers. palm oil, soy and paper that can drive energies and reduces production waste
deforestation. through its ambitious recycling policy.

Physical certified sustainable
palm oil represents

34. (%

of the total volume
purchased by Sodexo

5.5

billion euro
of Sodexo business value
benefiting SMEs

1 Greenhouse gas.
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SUSTAINABLE EATING: PROMOTING
PLANT-BASED MEAL OPTIONS

92.2%

of North America client
sites implement actions
that proactively address
Sodexo’s 10 Golden
Rules of Nutrition,
Health and Wellness

Sodexo is working with Knorr,
Unilever and WWF to offer delicious,
plant-based, environmentally
sustainable dishes in 5,000 Sodexo
restaurants in Belgium, the United

States, France and the United Kingdom.

In August 2019 Sodexo announced

a partnership with Impossible Foods
to offer their plant-based burger
across 1,500 food service sites within
North America. When compared
alongside a traditional meat-based
burger, the Impossible Burger™ used
96% less land, 87% less water and
89% less GHG emissions.

“Joining forces with chefs and the
food industry is an important step

to changing the way we produce and
consume food, moving away from an
over-reliance on carbon heavy foods
towards more plant-based diets.”

Sarah Halevy
WWEF Sustainable Diet Manager

L (%

reduction in carbon emissions
(compared to 2011 baseline)
absolute, for scopes 1 and 2

(2) GROWING OUR BUSINESS RESPONSIBLY

SUPPORTING A SHIFT TO INNOVATIVE
ENERGY SOLUTIONS THROUGH CREDIBLE
MANAGEMENT EXPERTISE

Sodexo’s energy management experts
help clients increase their efficiency,
reducing energy consumption and costs
while achieving sustainability goals.
Sodexo offers a global holistic energy
service which covers energy strategy,
compliance, procurement, monitoring
and technologies which drive efficiency.
Sodexo’s energy solutions help many
clients achieve six-figure annual energy
cost savings and attractive return on
investment.

62%

reduction in carbon emissions
(compared to 2011 baseline)
intensity, for scopes 1 and 2
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“By working collaboratively

and embracing Sodexo values,
we’ve been able to explore and
implement innovations to help
benefit the facility’s sustainability
now and in the future.”

Gary Brown

Energy Manager

Manchester University NHS Foundation
Trust

91.1%

of Group revenues
of countries hold one or more
ISO 14001 certifications
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3.1.1.1

CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION
Fiscal 2019 Activity Report

3.1.1 Fiscal 2019 year highlights

Financial results

Organic revenue growth for the year, at +3.6%, is above
the original guidance range of +2 to +3% given in
November 2018 and the revised guidance of “around +3%"
in July 2019. The underlying operating profit margin was in
line with our comments in July and at the lower end of the
original guidance range (5.5% to 5.7%, excluding currency
impact) at 5.5%.

On-site Services organic revenue growth of +3.3% has
significantly improved relative to previous years, reflecting:

e areturn to growth in revenue in North America, at +1.8%
for the full year, and sustained growth of +4.6% in all
other regions;

e mixed performance on key indicators:

- client retention rate has decreased 50 basis points to
93.3% due to losses in Healthcare in the second half.
Excluding the one large contract exited, retention was
up 10 bps. All other regions and segments are stable or
improved;

- new sales development was down 50 basis points to 6.3%,
due to stricter selectivity in the bidding process;

- same site sales growth was +3.7%, up from +2.6% in
Fiscal 2018, reflecting a combination of more inflation
pass-through, solid cross-selling, offset somewhat by
a net negative impact from IFRS 15 implementation of
about 20 basis points;

- with the award of the Summer 2020 Olympics hospitality
contract, the two major sports events in Japan (the
Rugby World Cup and the Olympics) should contribute
approximately 100 basis points of comparable site growth
for Fiscal 2020.

Benefits &§ Rewards Services organic revenue growth was
+8.5%, well balanced between Europe, Asia and USA at +8.6%
and Latin America at +8.3%.

The underlying operating margin was stable at 5.5% as
published and excluding the currency impact. Productivity
gains compensated investments in growth.

1 Including a tax reimbursement and related interest for a total of 51 million euro.
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3.1 FISCAL 2019 ACTIVITY REPORT

Other operating income and expenses reached 1471 million
euro, compared to 131 million euro the previous year.
Restructuring costs amounted to 46 million euro in Fiscal 2019
compared to 42 million euro in Fiscal 2018. Lower acquisition
costs and higher gains on the sale of assets nearly offset higher
amortization and depreciation of acquired intangible assets.

Reported net profit was 665 million euro, up +2.2%. Basic
EPS was 4.56 euro up +3.6%, helped by a lower average share
count following the share buy-back program in Fiscal 2018.

Underlying Net profit totaled 765 million euro, up +8.3%,
with underlying EPS at 5.25 euro, up +10.1%.

The dividend to be proposed at the Shareholders Meeting
on January 21, 2020, is 2.90 euro, up +5.5% on the previous
year, compared to an EPS up +3.6%. As a result, the pay-out
is at 64%, or 55% relative to Underlying EPS.

Free cash flow reached 907 million euro, representing a
strong performance following an exceptional performance in
Fiscal 2018 at 1,076 million euro™ and despite a significant
increase in net capex at 415 million, or 1.9% of revenues,
against 298 million euro in the previous year. As a result, cash
conversion remained high at 136% vs 165% in Fiscal 2018.

After taking into account acquisitions and dividends,
consolidated net debt at the end of the period was down
slightly to 1,213 million euro compared to 1,260 million euro
at August 31, 2018. As a result, the Group’s financial position
remained strong, with a net debt ratio at 0.9, just below the
target level of 1-2.

Acquisitions, net of disposals, amounted to 301 million
euro for the year, including:

e in On-site Food services, Novae and Alliance in
Partnership, strengthening the Group’s presence in high
end Corporate Services in Switzerland and public-sector
Education in the United Kingdom;

e in Homecare, several companies, strengthening the
Group’s positions in North America, France, and the
United Kingdom, and entering Brazil, the Nordics market
and Asia;

e in Childcare, with the acquisition of Créches de France,
doubling our presence in the French market and entering
the German market with Elly & Stoffl;
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e during the year, the Group also acquired minority stakes
in the digital/tech companies Meican in China and Zeta in
India, which were already providing On-site and Benefits
& Rewards operations with technology platforms in their
home countries. The strategy is to deploy these platforms
in other countries around the world.

e Sodexo’s engagement in Corporate Responsibility
continues to be recognized within the investment community,
by remaining the top-rated company in its sector within the
Dow Jones Sustainability Index (DJSI) for the 15th consecutive
year, and the highest marks in SAMs “Sustainability Yearbook”
for the 12th consecutive year in 2019.

3.1.1.2 Evolution in Governance

At the next Shareholders Meeting, on the recommendation of the
Nominating Committee, the Board will propose, as independent
directors:

e the following appointments:

e Véronique Laury, the former Chief Executive Officer
of Kingfisher, a UK retail FTSE100 company, with the
Castorama and B&Q brands. She will bring to the Board
her strong consumer knowledge, as well as sales and
marketing expertise in a B to C environment;

e Luc Messier has both Canadian and American citizenships.
He will bring significant international operational
experience, notably in the energy sector, through
executive management positions held with large French
and American multinational companies (ConocoPhilips,
Technip, Bouygues, Pomerleau);

e the following reappointments:

e Sophie Stabile, notably for her experience in operations
and finance in the services sector as well as her expertise
in mergers and acquisitions;

e (Cécile Tandeau de Marsac, notably for her experience in
marketing and in human resources in an international
group undergoing significant organizational changes.

In addition, the Board offers its sincere thanks for their
tremendous contributions to the Board to:

e Robert Baconnier, whose mandate expires at the Annual
Shareholders Meeting to be held on January 21, 2020, and
who has announced his intention to retire as director, which
he has been since February 8, 2005;

e Astrid Bellon who has expressed her wish to no longer be a
Board director from January 21, 2020, which she has been
since July 26, 1989, to fully devote herself to her role on the
Orientation Committee of the Pierre Bellon Foundation as
well as to her personal projects.

Should these appointments and renewals be approved by
shareholders at the General Meeting on January 21, 2020, the
Board would be composed of 12 members, including 2 employee
representatives. Amongst the 10 named by the Assembly, 7 are
independent, 6 are female and the average age is 55 years old.
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3.1.1.3 Focus on Growth

BE CLIENT
& CONSUMER
CENTRIC

ENHANCE
OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCY

EMPOWERMENT
&
ACCOUNTABILITY

ANCHOR
CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

NURTURE
TALENT

The Group’s strategic agenda Focus on Growth has oriented
the actions to generate productivity, by enhancing operational
efficiency, to free up the means to continue to invest in growth
by being more client and consumer centric. There has been a
focused effort to put food back into the heart of everything
we do. We are reinforcing discipline into our organization,
by nurturing talent with new training, a new performance
development framework Aspire, and considerable management
changes, particularly in North America.

Anchoring corporate responsibility is exemplified by the
launch in Fiscal 2019 of a global focus on food waste, with the
program WasteWatch, powered by Leanpath, to be deployed in
3,000 sites by the end of Fiscal 2020.

The STEP project, Sodexo’s performance management
framework, is expected to focus management on the operational
KPIs. The deployment is progressing in line with plan. The
standardized cloud-based dashboard including 21 operational
KPls, with cost of worked hour, spend per consumer or food costs
for example, went live in September 2019, for certain segments,
in six countries and is expected to be available on 7,500 sites by
February 2020.

3.1.1.4 Enhanced discipline across
the Group

The reignition of growth in Fiscal 2019 has been accompanied by
signs of greater discipline in the organization.

This is demonstrated by the following elements:

e our Lost time injury rate (LTIR) has continued to improve,
down 11.17% in Fiscal 2019, to reach 0.86;

e while revenue retention was at 93.3%, due in particular to the
exit of one large contract in Healthcare, gross profit retention
was higher at 95%;

e the gross profit margin of new contracts signed during the
year was 20 basis points higher in Fiscal 2019 than in the
previous year;

e in Corporate Services, the share of local contracts in the sales
pipeline represented 80%. These smaller, local contracts
ramp-up faster and can offset the impact of the larger
startups, which ramp-up more slowly.
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3.1.1.5 Growth investments financed by productivity

In line with the strategic agenda, productivity gains are being
achieved. On-site, clear signs of better control of food costs
and labor management are coming through, although some of
this has been offset by continued wage inflation, particularly
in North America. Off-site, the results of the Fit for the Future
program to streamline, standardize and mutualize SG&A costs
are also helping to reduce costs.

3.1.2 Fiscal 2019 performance

This productivity has been reinvested back into the business.
The key focus has been to accelerate growth, not just on a
short-term basis, but also on a medium and long-term basis.
The increase in investments in Onsite Services has been
directed towards widening and improving the digital offers,
data management, IT upgrade, improving and digitalizing sales
and marketing. In Benefits & Rewards, the focus has been on
transforming the organization with a new sales model, digital
marketing, data management optimization, innovative payment
solutions, enhancing the platforms and infrastructures for the
digital solutions of the traditional benefits business.

3.1.2.1 Consolidated income statement

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 DIFFERENCE

(ENDED (ENDED AT CONSTANT

(in millions of euro) AUGUST 31, 2019) AUGUST 31, 2018) DIFFERENCE RATES
Revenue 21,954 20,407 +7.6% +6.2%
Organic growth +3.6% +7.6%
UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT 1,200 1,128 +6.4% +6.0%
UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN 5.5% 5.5% = =
Other operating expenses (141) (131)
Operating profit 1,059 997 +6.2% +5.8%
Net financial expense (100) (90)
Effective tax rate 29.0% 27.1%
GROUP NET PROFIT 665 651 +2.2% +1.7%
EPS (in euro) 4.56 4.40 +3.6%
UNDERLYING NET PROFIT 765 706 +8.3% +7.8%
Underlying EPS (in euro) 5.25 477 +10.1%
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3.1.2.2 Currency effect

Exchange rate fluctuations do not generate operational risks,
because each subsidiary bills its revenues and incurs its
expenses in the same currency. However, given the weight of the
Benefit & Rewards business in Brazil, and the high Tevel of the
margins relative to the Group, when the Brazilian Real declines

CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION
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against the euro, it has a negative effect on the underlying
operating margin due to a change in the mix of margins.
Conversely, when the Brazilian Real improves, Group margins
increase.

AVERAGE RATE CLOSING RATE CLOSING RATE CLOSING RATE

AVERAGE RATE ~ AVERAGERATE  FISCAL2019VS.  FISCAL2019AT  FISCAL2018AT  08/31/2019 VS.
€1= FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 FISCAL 2018 08/31/2019 08/31/2018 08/31/2018
U.S. dollar 1.134 1.193 +5.2% 1.104 1.165 +5.6%
Pound sterling 0.885 0.884 -0.1% 0.906 0.897 -0.9%
Brazilian real 4.384 4.075 -7.0% 4.588 4.859 +5.9%

Sodexo operates in 67 countries. The percentage of total revenues and underlying operating profit denominated in the main currencies

are as follows:

% OF UNDERLYING

(FISCAL 2019) 9% OF REVENUES OPERATING PROFIT
U.S. dollar 42% 48%
Euro 25% 3%
UK pound sterling 9% 10%
Brazilian real 5% 20%

The currency effect is determined by applying the previous
year’s average exchange rates to the current year figures except
in hyper-inflationary economies where all figures are converted
at the latest closing rate for both periods when the impact is
significant.

As a result, for the calculation of organic growth of the On-site
Services activities in Argentina, Peso figures for Fiscal 2019 and
Fiscal 2018 have been converted at the exchange rate of 1 euro =
63.975 ARS vs 44.302 ARS for Fiscal 2018.

Starting Fiscal 2019 Venezuela is accounted for using the
equity method. Consequently, Venezuela is no longer included
in revenue.
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3.1.2.3 Revenues

REVENUES BY ACTIVITY

REVENUES BY SEGMENT RE:I;:T;[C) ORGANIC EXTERNAL CURRENCY

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 GROWTH GROWTH GROWTH EFFECT  TOTAL GROWTH
Business & Administrations 11,577 10,938 +3.5% +1.9% +3.5% +0.4% +5.8%
Healthcare & Seniors 5,210 4,768 +2.1% +5.5% +1.0% +2.8% +9.3%
Education 4,280 3,855 +4.6% +4. 7% +2.5% +3.9% +11.0%
ON-SITE SERVICES 21,067 19,561 +3.3% +3.3% +2.7% +1.7% +7.7%
BENEFITS & REWARDS

SERVICES 892 850 +8.5% +8.5% +0.1% -3.7% +4.9%
Elimination (4) (4)

TOTAL GROUP 21,954 20,407 +3.6% +3.6% +2.6% +1.5% +7.6%

Fiscal 2019 consolidated revenues totaled 22 billion euro, up
+7.6% year-on-year. This growth is the result of organic growth
of +3.6%, a contribution from acquisitions of +2.6%, with in
particular the full year impact of the Centerplate acquisition,
and positive currency movements for +1.5%, helped by the
strength of the U.S. dollar more than offsetting the weakness in
the Brazilian Real.

On-site Services

On-site Services organic revenue growth was +3.3% in
Fiscal 2019, the highest rate of growth achieved in the last
seven years. All regions and segments contributed to this
growth.

The Fiscal 2019 KPIs were mixed: net new business was neutral
with Development at 6.3%, compensating for Retention at
93.3%. Comparable site sales growth was strong at +3.7%.

CLIENT RETENTION IMPACTED BY A LARGE HEALTHCARE
CONTRACT EXIT IN NORTH AMERICA

Retention was 93.3% in Fiscal 2019, down 50 basis points
relative to Fiscal 2018. Excluding a large contract exit in
Healthcare North America, where profitability was inadequate,
retention would have been up 10 basis points (bps). This large
contract will terminate in the first quarter of Fiscal 2020.

The primary focus of the new Healthcare management team
in North America is to return to operational excellence on
existing contracts and improving productivity, and where this is
impossible closing the contract.
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DEVELOPMENT STRONG IN MOST REGIONS

At 6.3%, the development rate was down 50 basis points.
This reflects a more active selection process to identify the
contracts where the Group believes it can add value to the
client while generating good margins. The Corporate Services
strategy to improve the mix of signatures between large global
accounts which ramp-up over years and small local accounts
which ramp-up rapidly is also having an impact. In Healthcare,
the new management team is regenerating the pipeline. In
Sports & Leisure, as expected, development was low, due to the
successful and substantial renewals program in North America
which mobilized the teams. All other regions and segments
have improved their development rates and Sodexo was chosen
recently to manage hospitality for the 2020 Summer Olympics
in Japan. The contribution of the Rugby World Cup and the
Olympics will add around 100 basis points to comparable unit
growth in Fiscal 2020.

SOLID COMPARABLE SITE SALES GROWTH

Comparable site sales growth of +3.1% is up 50 basis points
relative to Fiscal 2018, reflecting a combination of more
inflation pass-through and solid cross-selling, offset somewhat
by a net negative impact from the IFRS 15 implementation of
about 20 basis points.

In Fiscal 2019, Food services organic growth improved, while
non-food services continue to perform well with high single-digit
growth. Non-food services represent 34% of On-site Services
revenue.
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ON-SITE SERVICES REVENUES BY REGION
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REVENUES BY REGION

RESTATED ORGANIC

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 GROWTH
North America 9,572 8,707 +1.8%
Europe 8,129 7,690 +3.2%
Africa, Asia, Australia, Latam, Middle East 3,366 3,163 +7.9%
ONSITE SERVICES TOTAL 21,067 19,561 +3.3%

Outside North America, representing 55% of On-site Services revenue, organic growth was +4.6%.

Brexit

In June 20716, the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union. Sodexo has been present in the United
Kingdom since 1988 and has around 35,000 employees there today. The Group’s business should not be materially
impacted by the United Kingdom leaving the European Union. The Group is a local player, working with local suppliers
and employees, and very often for Government authorities and Government services. Action plans have been put in
place to limit the impact of a hard or no deal Brexit on food prices and availability. We have noticed a slowdown in
new business opportunities even though same site sales growth and client retention remain solid. Of course, growth
in activity will remain dependent upon growth in GDP and employment in the country.

Business & Administrations

REVENUES

REVENUES BY REGION

RESTATED ORGANIC

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 GROWTH
North America 3,263 2,822 +1.9%
Europe 5,371 5,313 +2.5%
Africa, Asia, Australia, Latam, Middle East 2,942 2,804 +6.8%
BUSINESS & ADMINISTRATIONS TOTAL 11,577 10,938 +3.5%

Fiscal 2019 Business & Administrations revenues totaled 11.6
billion euro, with organic growth of +3.5%.

In North America organic growth was up +1.9% reflecting
strong growth in Corporate Services, driven by same site sales
growth, new contracts and solid retention, compensating weaker
organic growth in other segments. Government & Agencies same
site sales growth was impacted negatively by the renewal of the
U.S. Marines Corp contract, although the trend is improving
progressively quarter by quarter, as the new contract ramps
up. In Sports & Leisure, organic growth was negative due to the
exit of some less profitable contracts. The very substantial and
successful contract renewal program this year mobilized the
sales teams, resulting in low levels of new development. Energy
& Resources remains volatile, quarter by quarter, and impacted
by a tough comparable base in the first quarter due to a large
one-off project in Fiscal 2018.

In Europe, sales were up +2.5% organically. Corporate Services
continued to generate solid growth due to cross-selling, an easier
comparative base in Benelux, and strong growth in southern
and eastern Europe. Summer tourism in Paris was better than
expected partially compensating a contract 1oss in France.
Government & Agencies improved quarter by quarter during the
year. Energy & Resources turned positive in the second half.

In Africa, Asia, Australia, Latin America, Middle East
organic revenue growth remains strong at +6.8% for the year,
reflecting strong growth in same site sales and new business
in Corporate Services in all regions, progressive improvement
quarter by quarter in Energy & Resources growth, and a
successful Pan-American Games in August in Peru.
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Healthcare & Seniors

REVENUES BY REGION

RESTATED ORGANIC

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 GROWTH
North America 3,211 3,001 +1.5%
Europe 1,678 1,493 +0.9%
Africa, Asia, Australia, Latam, Middle East 321 274 +17.4%
HEALTHCARE & SENIORS TOTAL 5,210 4,768 +2.1%

Healthcare & Seniors revenues amounted to 5.2 billion euro,
up +2.1% organically.

In North America, organic growth was +1.5%. The renewed
management team is focused on improving execution and
productivity, generating more cross-selling on existing
contracts, passing through inflation and putting more discipline
into the sales process. Retention was impacted this year due
to the loss of several contracts and one large contract exit for
which profitability has been an issue. These contracts started
to fall out of revenues in the fourth quarter but will continue
to do so in the first half of Fiscal 2020. Development has also
been slow due to a much more selective process, impacting the
pipeline of opportunities. However, the contracts signed are more
robust. Seniors organic growth improved progressively quarter
by quarter, after the loss of a significant contract in the first
quarter.

Education

REVENUES BY REGION

In Europe, organic growth was +0.9%. The slow market dynamic
in both Hospitals and Seniors and the resulting negative net
new business in most countries has hampered growth. On the
other hand, same site sales growth was strong, particularly in
northern Europe. The pipeline is showing signs of improvement,
particularly in the UK.

In Africa, Asia, Australia, Latin America, Middle East organic
revenue growth has remained strong all year, at +17.4% despite
the comparable base becoming more and more challenging
quarter after quarter. The growth reflects new contract startups
in Brazil and Asia, as clients seek to benefit from the transfer of
the Group’s expertise, and particularly strong same site sales
growth across the regions. The development rate has slowed
down slightly during the year but remains well over the average
for the segment.

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL2018  ORGANIC GROWTH
North America 3,098 2,884 +2.2%
Europe 1,079 885 +12.0%
Africa, Asia, Australia, Latam, Middle East 102 86 +12.3%
EDUCATION TOTAL 4,280 3,855 +4. 7%

Revenues in Education were 4.3 billion euro, up +4.7%
organically.

North America was up +2.2%, or +3.6% excluding the IFRS 15
impact™. While net new business from last year was neutral,
same site sales growth has been solid, helped by inflation
pass-through, some impact from extra working days, and solid
summer works. The selling season in Fiscal 2019 remained
broadly neutral, with higher retention but lower development.

In Europe, organic growth was +12%. This strong performance
is driven by solid prior year contract wins in the UK and the
startup in January of the new School contract in the Yvelines
department, the biggest School contract ever signed in France,
combining both food and facilities management services.

In Africa, Asia, Australia, Latin America, and the Middle
East, organic growth was +12.3%, despite an ever higher
comparable base, resulting from the opening of several new
School and University contracts in China, Singapore and India.

1 First time implementation of IFRS 15 in Fiscal 2019 has had a negative impact of 20 basis points on Fiscal 2019 Group organic growth. However, this is made
up of a significant impact in Education in North America and a lesser positive impact disseminated broadly around the other segments and regions.
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Benefits & Rewards Services

Benefits & Rewards Services revenue amounted to 892 million
euro, up +4.9%. Currencies had a negative impact of -3.7%,
due principally to the weakness of the Brazilian real and the
Turkish lira. The scope change was negligible. Organic growth
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in revenues was strong at +8.5%, with a very strong first nine
months, and then a slowing down against a higher comparable
base in the fourth quarter.

REVENUES BY ACTIVITY
(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL2018  ORGANIC GROWTH
Employee benefits 709 677 +9.4%
Diversification services* 183 173 +5.0%
BENEFITS & REWARDS SERVICES 892 850 +8.5%

* Including Incentive & Recognition, Mobility & Expenses and Public Benefits.

Employee Benefit revenues were up +9.4% organically,
compared to organic growth in issue volume (13.5 billion
euro) of +7.1%. In Brazil, growth was strong in the first half,
slowing down in the second due to the strong comparable base
and economic environment which became progressively more
difficult. Growth was strong in Europe.

Services Diversification was up +5% organically, or
+18.7% excluding some portfolio rationalization in Incentive
& Recognition, resulting from strong double-digit growth in
Mobility & Expense and rapid development in Corporate Health
& Wellness offers.

REVENUES BY NATURE
(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL2018  ORGANIC GROWTH
Operating Revenues 818 T +8.4%
Financial Revenues T4 73 +9.1%
BENEFITS & REWARDS SERVICES 892 850 +8.5%

Operating revenues were up +8.4%, with solid growth in
western Europe, double digit growth in eastern and southern
Europe and strong growth in Latin America.

Financial revenues were up +9.1% as a result of continued
volume growth across the regions this year and an increase in

interest rates in Turkey, Czech Republic and Romania, where
we also had an exceptionally high float due to exceptionally
high issuance at the end of the previous fiscal year. Growth
was slower in the fourth quarter due to the decline in Brazilian
interest rates.

REVENUES BY REGION
(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL2018  ORGANIC GROWTH
Europe, Asia and USA 508 473 +8.6%
Latin America 384 377 +8.3%
BENEFITS & REWARDS SERVICES 892 850 +8.5%

In Europe, Asia and USA, organic growth in revenues remains
strong at +8.6%. This performance is due to a solid performance
in western Europe, double-digit growth in eastern and southern
Europe, and Turkey. Rydoo, the end-to-end travel and expense
management system is growing very strongly as are the
Corporate Health & Wellness offers.

Organic growth in Latin America was +8.3% reflects strong
growth in activity in the first half of the year, following on from
the strong pick-up in Brazil in the third quarter of Fiscal 2018.
Growth slowed down in the fourth quarter due to the higher
comparable base. Momentum in Mexico remained good and
growth in Chile was strong.
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3.1.2.54 Underlying operating profit

Fiscal 2019 Underlying operating profit amounted to 1.2 billion
euro, up +6.4%, or +6% excluding the currency effect. Underlying
operating margin was 5.5%, stable relative to the previous year,
on current and constant exchange rates. The On-site Services

margin was stable at 5% and the Benefits & Rewards Services
margin at 31% was up 20 basis points, or +110 basis points,
excluding the currency mix effect of the weakness of the
Brazilian Real.

DIFFERENCE

UNDERLYING DIFFERENCE UNDERLYING IN MARGIN

OPERATING (EXCLUDING OPERATING (EXCLUDING

PROFIT CURRENCY  PROFIT MARGIN DIFFERENCE  CURRENCY MIX

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 DIFFERENCE EFFECT) FISCAL 2019 MARGIN EFFECT)

Business & Administrations 487 +8.0% +7.1% 4.2% +0 bps +0 bps

Healthcare & Seniors 342 +9.6% +6.3% 6.6% +30 bps +20 bps

Education 220 -1,4% -5.7% 5.1% -70 bps -70 bps

On-site Services 1,049 +6.4% +3.9% 5.0% +0 bps +0 bps

Benefits & Rewards Services 276 +5.7% +12.7% 31.0% +20 bps +110 bps
Corporate expenses & Intragroup eliminations (126) -4.7% -4.1%

UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT 1,200 +6.4% +6.0% 5.5% + 0 bps +0 bps

In On-site Services, underlying operating profit was up 6.4%,
or 3.9% excluding the currency impact. Margin was stable. The
performance by segment, excluding the currency effect, is as
follows:

e Business & Administrations Underlying operating profit
increased by +7.1% and the operating margin was stable at
4.2%. As expected the productivity generated by the business
during the year was reinjected into more sales, marketing,
digital spend, new offers to accelerate growth. The timing
differences between investments and productivity gains,
visible in the first half figures, were covered as expected, helped
by some client renegotiations to establish better levels of
profitability in some of the larger contracts started up recently,
and in particular for the U.S. Marine Corps contract (USMC);

e in Healthcare & Seniors the increase in Underlying operating
profit and margin was respectively +6.3% and +20 basis
points, reflecting the enhanced discipline of the new team,
particularly in North America. Productivity is improving due to
the introduction of new systems to better manage staffing and
food costs and generally, more rigorous management of the
STEP operational KPIs. Inflation is covered by price increases;

e in Education, underlying operating profit fell by -5.7%
and the margin by -70 basis points due to previous year
churn, particularly in North America and the startup of
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many new contracts. The first half was also impacted by
strikes in France. North American wage inflation has been
passed through. However, wage inflation has continued in
Fiscal 2019, absorbing most of the productivity achieved
during the year.

In Benefits & Rewards Services, underlying operating profit
and margin were up respectively +12.7% and +110 basis points,
excluding currency impacts. This is due to the strong recovery
in volumes and a relative stabilization of interest rates in Brazil,
despite weakness in the last quarter. Investments are continuing,
to implement the digital transformation of the organization.

3.1.2.5 Group net profit

Other operating income and expenses were 141 million
euro versus 1371 million euro in the previous year. Restructuring
costs reached 46 million euro compared to 42 million euro in
the previous year. While amortization and depreciation of
acquired intangible assets were up against the previous year
linked principally to the ongoing effects of the Centerplate
acquisition and some intangibles impairment, this was nearly
compensated by lower acquisition costs and net gains from the
sale of subsidiaries, linked to the exit of some countries.
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(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 1 10
Gains related to consolidation scope changes 9 3
Gains on changes of post-employment benefits 1 -
Other 1 7
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (152) (141)
Restructuring and rationalization costs (46) (42)
Acquisition-related costs amn (15)
Losses related to consolidation scope changes o (18)
Losses on changes of post-employment benefits (4) -
Amortization and impairment of acquired intangible assets (85) (52)
Impairment of non-current assets - -
Other (6) (14)
OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES (141) (131)

As a result, the Operating Profit was 1,059 million euro, up
+6.2%.

Net financial expenses increased by 10 million euro, to
100 million euro essentially due to the absence of the exceptional
interest payment from the French State on the dividend tax
reimbursement of 7 million euro last year. The remainder is due
to higher debt resulting from the acquisition of Centerplate in
January 2018 and the share buy-backs last year and the related
refinancing. A new 9-year sterling bond was issued in June 2019,
partially offsetting a repayment of a tranche from the 2014 USPP
in March 2019. Though they have reduced the Group’s short-term
funding from commercial paper at negative interest rates, these
operations have ensured that the average debt maturity remains
over 5 years and provided a hedge for sterling cashflow. The
blended cost of debt was 2.6% as of August 31, 2019, compared
to 2.5% at the end of Fiscal 2018.

The effective tax rate returned to a more normal level at 29.0%
after the exceptional 27.1% in Fiscal Year 2018 which benefited
from a positive one-off in France from the reimbursement of the
3% contribution on distributed dividends over the period 2013-
2017. It now fully reflects the positive impact of the tax rate
reduction in the USA.

The share of profit of other companies consolidated by
the equity method was 4 million euro. Profit attributed to
non-controlling interests was 21 million euro, after 13 million

euro in the previous year due notably to the contribution from
the joint venture managing the Rugby World Cup.

As a result, Group net profit was 665 million euro, up +2.2%.
Underlying net profit amounted to 765 million euro, up +8.3%,
or +7.8% excluding the currency impact, adjusted for Other
operating income and expenses at a normalized tax rate.

3.1.2.6 Earnings per share

Published EPS was 4.56 euro, up +3.6%. The 160-basis point
accretion relative to the change in net profit is due to the effect
of the 300 million euro share buy-back during the previous
year resulting in a lower weighted average number of shares of
145,721,534 relative to 148,077,776 shares for Fiscal 2018.

Underlying Earnings per share amounted to 5.25 euro, up
+10.1%.

3.1.2.7 Proposed dividend

At the Shareholder’s Meeting to be held on January 21, 2020,
the Board of Directors will recommend a dividend of 2.90 euro
per share for Fiscal 2019, up +5.5% relative to the prior year,
reflecting the increase in EPS of +3.6%. This proposal reflects
the Board’s confidence in the Group’s strategy. As a result, the
pay-out ratio will be 64%, or 55% on Underlying EPS.
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3.1.3 Consolidated financial position

3.1.3.1 Cash flows

Cash flows for the period were as follows:

(in millions of euro) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
Operating cash flow 1,139 1,140
Change in working capital excluding change in BRS financial assets* 182 221

Net capital expenditure (415) (286)
Free cash flow 907 1,076
Net acquisitions (301) (697)
Share buy-backs (7) (300)
Dividends paid to shareholders (403) (417)
Other changes (including scope and exchange rates) (150) (316)
(Increase)/decrease in net debt L7 (648)

* Excluding change in financial assets related to the Benefits & Rewards Services activity (-53 million euro in Fiscal 2079 and -228 million euro in Fiscal 2018). Total
change in working capital as reported in consolidated accounts: in Fiscal 2019: 129 million euro = 182 million euro - 53 million euro and in Fiscal 2018: -7 million

euro = 2271 million euro - 228 million euro.

Operating cash flow was stable at 1,139 million euro against an
exceptionally strong level last year, helped by low cash taxes and
net interest paid, linked to the dividend tax reimbursement in
Fiscal 2018. The positive inflow of working capital of 182 million
euro remained strong, helped by the strongly favorable cut-off
impact at the end of August of the Rugby World Cup, the growth
in the business and ongoing improvements in operational cash
management throughout the Group.

Net capital expenditure, including client investments amounted
to 415 million euro, representing 1.9% of revenues, compared to
1.4% of revenues last year. This reflects higher IT investments,
connected to the upgrading of certain systems, a significant
increase linked to Education and the higher levels of investments
required to support the retention efforts of Sports & Leisure,
particularly within Centerplate in North America. As previously
announced, this rate is expected to increase over the next few
years to around 2.5%, as client retention and development of
sales improve in Education and Sports & Leisure.

Free cash flow reached 907 million euro, a strong performance
despite the significant increase in net capex. Previous year
performance was boosted by a significant reduction in cash
taxes, linked to the exceptional tax reimbursement in France
and a decline in the U.S. tax rate. As a result, cash conversion
reached 136% compared to 165% in Fiscal 2018.
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Net acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries came out at
301 million euro from particularly high 697 million euro in
the previous year, reflecting, in particular, the acquisition of
Centerplate for a total of 610 million euro. After taking into
account dividend payments of 403 million euro, and Other
changes, principally linked to currency impacts and consolidation
scope changes, consolidated net debt fell during the year by
47 million euro to 1,213 million euro at August 31, 2019.

3.1.3.2 Acquisitions for the period

In Fiscal 2019, given the focus on accelerating growth in On-
site Services and resolving the issues in North America, the
acquisitions were predominantly focused on:

e Homecare with entry into the Brazilian and Norwegian
markets through Pronep and Prima Omsorg and acquiring
density in the UK, France, USA with respectively The Good
Care Group, Domicil+ and franchisees, and a small entry in
the Asian market;

e Childcare with a substantial increase in size in France
through the acquisition of Créches de France and an entry
into the German market through Elly & Stoffl;

e the other acquisitions included a strengthening of the Group’s
position in Education in the UK with Alliance in Partnership
and the development of Food services in Switzerland with the
acquisition of Novae.
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3.1.3.3 Condensed consolidated statement of financial position at August 31, 2019

(in millions of euro) AUGUST 31, 2019 AUGUST 31, 2018

AUGUST 31, 2019 AUGUST 31, 2018

Non-current assets 9,455 7,944  Shareholders’ equity 4,456* 3,283
Current assets excluding cash 5,111 4,628 Non-controlling interests 42 45
Restricted cash-Benefits &
Rewards 678 615 Non-current liabilities 4,722 4,330
Financial assets-Benefits &
Rewards L42 427  Current liabilities 8,247 7,622
Cash 1,781 1,666
TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL ASSETS 17,467 15,280 AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 17,467 15,280
Gross debt 4,079 3,940
Net debt 1,213 1,260
Gearing 27% 38%
Net debt ratio 0.9 1.0

* The main impact reflects the reevaluation of certain financial assets in the context of first-time application of IFRS 9.

As of August 31, 2019, net debt was 1,213 million euro,
representing a gearing of 27%, compared to 38% as of
August 31, 2018, and a net debt ratio of 0.9, just below the
Group’s target range of 1 to 2.

The Group’s financial position remains strong with cash flow
covering investments, acquisitions and the dividend. As a result,
gearing and net debt ratio have improved. During the year, the
Group continued to improve the maturity of its debt with the
Issuance of a new GBP bond of 250 million pounds sterling
(276 million euro), the repayment of the first tranche of the
2074 USPP of 150 million U.S. dollars (132 million euro) and a
100 million euro reduction of commercial paper issued.

At the end of Fiscal 2019, the Group had unused lines of credit
totaling 1.8 billion euro and an operating cash position of
2,866 million euro (including restricted cash for 678 million euro,
financial assets for 442 million euro and 35 million euro of
bank overdrafts). As a reminder, the cash position includes
2,136 million euro for Benefits & Rewards Services.

3.1.3.4 Outlook

The Focus on Growth strategic agenda has delivered growth of
more than 3% this year. There are many action plans around the
Group with initiatives to enhance quality of new and renewed
contracts, operational efficiency and growth.

For Fiscal 2020, while growth in North America remains
challenging as the Healthcare contract losses fall out of revenues
and with net new business being only neutral in Education,
growth in all other areas and segments should continue to
accelerate.

This year also benefits from two major sports events in Japan,
with the Rugby World Cup in the first quarter and the 2020
Summer Olympics in the fourth quarter.

The Group is continuing to identify new Fit for the Future
initiatives to generate SG&A savings. This will complement the
operational productivity coming through due to more discipline
and STEP implementation. These savings will continue to be
reinvested in accelerating growth.

As a result, for Fiscal 2020 the Group is expecting:

e organic revenue growth of around 4%, including the
major sports events;

o stable underlying operating profit margin for the year,
excluding the currency impact and any impact from
IFRS 16 implementation.

Mid-term, the Group aims to deliver market leading profitable
growth. Current Group investments, activity mix and geographic
presence provide us with the opportunities to capture this
growth. Sodexo is capable of accelerating organic growth over
the years to come while ensuring a sustainable and inclusive
business model.

As organic growth increases, growth investments will be kept
under control, so that the effects of enhanced discipline and
efficiency gains will feed margin expansion.
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3.1.3.5 Alternative Performance Measure definitions

Blended cost of debt

The blended cost of debt is calculated at period end and is
the weighted blended financing rate on borrowings (including
derivative financial instruments and commercial papers) and
cash pooling balances at period end.

Free cash flow

Please refer to the section entitled Consolidated financial position.

Growth excluding currency effect

The currency effect is determined by applying the previous year’s
average exchange rates to the current year figures except in hyper-
inflationary economies where all figures are converted at the latest
closing rate for both periods when the impact is significant.

As a result, for the calculation of organic growth of the On-site
Services activities in Argentina, Peso figures for Fiscal 2019 and
Fiscal 2018 have been converted at the exchange rate of 1 euro
=63.975 ARS vs 44.302 ARS for Fiscal 2018.

Issue volume

Issue volume corresponds to the total face value of service
vouchers, cards and digitally-delivered services issued by the
Group (Benefits & Rewards Services activity) for beneficiaries on
behalf of clients.

Net debt

Net debt is defined as Group borrowing at the balance sheet
date, less operating cash.

Organic growth

Organic growth corresponds to the increase in revenue for a
given period (the “current period”) compared to the revenue
reported for the same period of the prior fiscal year, calculated
using the exchange rate for the prior fiscal year; and excluding
the impact of business acquisitions (or gain of control) and
divestments, as follows:

e for businesses acquired (or gain of control) during the current
period, revenue generated since the acquisition date is
excluded from the organic growth calculation;
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e for businesses acquired (or gain of control) during the prior
fiscal year, revenue generated during the current period up
until the first anniversary date of the acquisition is excluded;

e for businesses divested (or loss of control) during the prior
fiscal year, revenue generated in the comparative period of
the prior fiscal year until the divestment date is excluded;

e for businesses divested (or loss of control) during the current
fiscal year, revenue generated in the period commencing
12 months before the divestment date up to the end of the
comparative period of the prior fiscal year is excluded;

e for countries with hyperinflationary economies all figures
are converted at the latest closing rate for both periods. As
a result, for the calculation of organic growth of the On-site
Services activities in Argentina, Peso figures for Fiscal 2019
and Fiscal 2018 have been converted at the exchange rate of
1 euro =63.975 ARS vs 44.302 ARS for Fiscal 2018.

Underlying Net profit

Underlying Net profit presents a net income excluding significant
unusual and/or infrequent elements. Therefore, it corresponds to
the Net Income Group share excluding Other Income and Expense
and significant non-recurring elements in both Net Financial
Expense and Income Tax Expense where relevant.

Underlying Net profit per share

Underlying Net profit per share presents the Underlying net
profit divided by the average number of shares.

Underlying operating profit margin

The underlying operating profit margin corresponds to
Underlying operating profit divided by revenues.

Underlying operating profit margin at constant
rates

The underlying operating profit margin at constant rates
corresponds to Underlying operating profit divided by revenues,
calculated by converting 2019 figures at Fiscal 2018 rates,
except for countries with hyperinflationary economies.
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3.2 EXTRA-FINANCIAL REPORTING

3.2.1 470,000 employees serving clients and consumers

3.2.1.1 Workforce by segment and activity
WORKFORCE BREAKDOWN

FISCAL 2019 CHANGE FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018+
Business & Administrations ¥ 275,262 +2,736 58.5% 59.2%
Healthcare and Seniors M 87,980 +3,369 18.7% 18.4%
Education 4 92,109 +3,563 19.6% 19.2%
TOTAL ON-SITE SERVICES 4 455,351 +9,678 96.8% 96.7%
BENEFITS & REWARDS SERVICES M 4,901 +521 1.0% 1.0%
GROUP HEADQUARTERS AND SHARED STRUCTURES ¥ 9,985 -625 2.1% 2.3%
TOTAL M 470,237 +9,574 100% 100%

* Reclassified for inter-segment reallocation.

The total number of employees has increased by +2.1%, well
below revenue growth of +7.6%, or even organic growth of
+3.6%.

In Business and Administrations, the growth in headcount
reflects strong growth in Asia and Latin America especially with
large new openings in Brazil and Mexico. In North America and
Europe the headcount is stable.

In Healthcare, the increase in workforce is mainly due to the
opening of many new sites in Brazil and India, while the number
of people is down slightly in Europe and in North America due

3.2.1.2 Workforce by region

to some closures in the fourth quarter. The growth of Homecare
in the U.S. and the UK also contributes to the increase in the
number of employees.

In Education the increase in workforce is driven by new business
with the very substantial Yvelines school contract in France,
many new contracts and acquisitions in the UK, as well as the
acquisition of Créches de France (Childcare).

In Benefits & Rewards the growth in Travel and expense
management (Inspirus and Rydoo) revenues explains the
increase of headcounts.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
North America 33.1% 34.1%
Europe 30.0% 29.9%
Africa, Asia, Australia, Latin America, Middle East 36.9% 36.0%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0%

The increasing share of workforce in Africa, Asia, Australia, Latin
America, Middle East is driven by the strong growth in activity
in Brazil, India and Mexico. Despite the Childcare and Homecare
acquisitions in France and the UK, the share in Europe remains

stable, in line with the growth in activity. The decline in North
America is due to the slower growth in the region and the recent
contract exits in Healthcare segment.

Note: From 3.2.1.3, all Fiscal 2018 workforce figures exclude Centerplate (27,696 employees as of August 31, 2018).

M Indicators verified to the level of “reasonable” assurance by KPMG.
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3.2.1.3 Workforce by category

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
TOTAL 9% FEMALE TOTAL % FEMALE
Board &A™ 10 60% 11 55%
Executive Committee ¥ 20 35% 19 37%
Group Senior Executives M® 203 37% 203 34%
Managers M 52,179 44% 49,743 43%
ATl Employees M 470,237 55% 432,967 55%

(1) Excluding the 2 members of the Board who are employee representatives.
(2) Group Senior Executive includes the key functions reporting directly to a Group Executive Committee member, higher level sales and operations and high potentials.

The share of women on the Executive Committee decreased

[+)
slightly due to the turnover, but, remains at a healthy 35% level. Syl Le el 100% of our employees work

in countries that have gender
balance in their management
populations

On the other hand, the share of women has increased in the OBJECTIVE
Group Senior Executives community which is an important
talent pool for the future Executive Committee members as well
as among managers.

FISCAL 2019
% of employees working in countries that have gender balance in their management populations 50.4%
3.2.1.4 Workforce by age group and average seniority
FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
EMPLOYEES MANAGERS EMPLOYEES MANAGERS
Under 30 years 28.6% 12.1% 27.4% 11.9%
30-40 years 22.7% 29.6% 23.6% 30.7%
40-50 years 21.6% 29.1% 22.3% 29.5%
50-60 years 19.0% 22.1% 19.4% 21.9%
Over 60 years 8.1% 7.0% 7.3% 6.0%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100%
(in number of years) FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
Managers 8.6 8.3
Employees 4.6 4.8
AVERAGE SENIORITY 5.1 4.8
3.2.1.5 New hires excluding acquisitions and contract transfers
FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
Employees 175,599 161,365 +14,234
Managers 9,353 6,117 +3,236
TOTAL 184,952 167,482 +17,L70

New entrants have increased in Fiscal 2019, mainly driven by Centerplate (only consolidated in this analysis since Fiscal 2019) and
the Homecare acquisitions and in countries that are growing strongly such as Brazil and India.

In some countries, new hires are slightly down in correlation with an increase in employee retention.
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3.2.1.6 Departures by reason on continuous contract (excluding site loss)

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
Resignations (less than 3 months) 35,297 33,353 +1,944
Resignations (after 3 months) 85,317 81,770 +3,547
TOTAL RESIGNATIONS 120,614 115,123 +5,491
Dismissals or redundancy 42,152 33,972 +8,180
Retirement and other reasons 6,638 4,093 +2,545
TOTAL NUMBER OF DEPARTURES 169,404 153,188 +16,216
3.2.1.7 Retention of talents
FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
Retention Rate for Total Workforce M 81.6% 80,9%
Retention Rate for Site Management & 87.2% 86,6%

The retention rate is calculated on the basis of resignations after more than 3 months of service. The improvement compared to Fiscal
2018 is principally in North America and India, due to retention initiatives such as ensuring timely induction of new joiners in India.

RETENTION RATE FOR SITE MANAGERS

COUNTRIES

>30%

Argentina, Belgium, Brazil, Canada, Chile, France, Germany, Italy, Netherlands, Russia, Spain

80%-90%

China, Colombia, Finland, Sweden, UK, USA

<80%

India

3.2.2 Engaged talents

BETTER TOMORROW
80% employee

engagement rate

OBJECTIVE

The employee engagement rate - expressing both satisfaction,
and involvement and promotion - is a key performance indicator
for Sodexo, which seeks to become one of the most admired
companies by its employees in the world.

In April 2018, Sodexo conducted its seventh international
engagement survey for all employees with at least six months
seniority, representing 386,262 employees in 55 countries. The

survey, conducted online, attracted a high participation rate of
62% (versus 57% in 2016). For the fifth consecutive survey, the
employee engagement rate increased. In 2018, it reached 69%,
+71 pointcompared to the previous survey, well above the 64%
benchmark rate™.

Local survey results are then shared with teams to develop
tangible action plans. These plans are used to improve
performance on issues such as absenteeism, health and safety
and employee retention, in order to continue to enhance Quality
of Life for employees, to in turn enhance quality of life for
consumers and productivity for clients.

JUNE 2018 JUNE 2016 CHANGE
Number of respondents 239,520 208,775 +15%
Employee engagement Rate M 69% 68% +1 pt
% of employees rating Sodexo as the best employer in its sector 84% 88% -4 pts
% of employees believing that Sodexo values diversity (such as age, gender,
culture and origin, religion, sexual orientation and providing opportunities for
individuals with disabilities) in the workplace 82% 80% +2 pts
% of employees considering Sodexo to be a socially
and environmentally responsible company 80% 80% -

71 Aon Hewitt client companies.
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3.2.3

3.2.3.1 Developing our employees

Investment in talent development

Sodexo is convinced that the satisfaction of its clients and consumers depends largely on the skills and talents of its employees.

The Learning and Development Department offers Sodexo employees a wide range of professional and learning programs.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
Total number of training hours™ 4,017,650 3,362,594 +19.5%
Average number of hours of training per employee™ 12.4 10.9 +14.3%
% of client sites providing training on sustainable practices @ 49.2%

(1) The number of training hours excludes the USA due to data quality issues and Germany due to Work Council.
(2) This indicator is not available for Fiscal year 2019 as the site survey process is being reviewed. The indicator will be disclosed starting Fiscal year 2020, based on

a new methodology.

Excluding the USA, the number of hours of training increased
in Fiscal 2019 due to Responsible Business Conduct campaign.

The Learning and Development focus in Fiscal 2019 has
been on supporting the strategic agenda with key programs
designed to reinforce the fundamentals of the Focus on Growth
strategic agenda: being clients and consumer centric, enhancing
operational efficiency, nurturing talent and anchoring corporate
responsibility. Notable launches in Fiscal 2019 include:

e Unleash - this program is an online program available,
on demand to all managers worldwide to support them in
developing their fundamental management capabilities. The
program is available in more than ten languages and covers
themes such as team feedback, team communication and
objectives setting;

e the On-Site Manager Academy has been developed to
support On-Site Managers in driving growth, managing and
engaging their teams and delivering operational efficiency.
This blended learning journey also supports them in their
personal development and in providing them with a strong
network to drive their own development and that of their
business. All regions globally have launched the Academy
with nearly 5,000 participants currently on the program;

3.2.3.2

e the Digital Passport is designed to accelerate digital
transformation by providing the right mind-set, skills and
specialization to Sodexo’s employees. Over 8,000 have
already participated in the digital passport across the first
countries to go live (India, Brazil, China, Nordics).

BETTER TOMORROW 100% of our employees
are trained on sustainable

practices

OBJECTIVE

Training our employees on environmental issues improves
our services, raises awareness, and changes behaviors. We
encourage our teams to report any issues which concern them
so that we can prevent environmental incidents. This is backed
by a robust compliance process to ensure we adhere to the laws,
regulations, Group standards and contractual commitments
that help ensure a healthier environment. In order to reach our
ambitious 2025 target we have decided to implement a global
training program starting Fiscal year 2020. The first indicator
will be disclosed in the Fiscal 2020 reporting.

Internal promotion at the heart of Sodexo’s model

The Company encourages employees to develop a career plan, to explore new professional horizons and take on new responsibilities.
This is dependent upon providing multiple opportunities through continued growth, the evolution of the portfolio of activities and the

variety of its professions.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
% of off-site managers promoted internally 7.6% 6.6%
% of on-site managers promoted internally 8.8% 8.7%
% of employees promoted internally 2.2% 2.9%
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3.2.4 Flexible organization, respectful of employees, offering

good working conditions

Because people work better when they work in a professionally
fulfilling, stable and secure environment, Sodexo ensures that
its employees are the first to benefit from its mission to improve
Quality of Life. Sodexo is committed to improving the well-being
of its employees.

The Group’s organizational model ensures continuity of service
quality, while remaining attentive to the expectations of its
employees, in accordance with local regulations. Part-time
work and use of fixed-term contracts provide the flexibility for
business needs.

Around the world, Sodexo promotes work flexibility for its
employees, taking into account their lifestyle and ways of

3.2.4.1 Ensuring employee safety

Sodexo has continued to strengthen its prevention programs
for the management of workplace health and safety including
providing all members of the Group Executive Committee with
individual leadership coaching during Fiscal 2019. Sodexo Safety
Nets (preventive controls) and Life Safety (Hazardous activities)
programs provide better understanding of risks and causes of
accidents, enabling focused improvement actions. The biggest
LTIR improvements in Fiscal 2019 were achieved by the Energy &

working. The Group facilitates a good work-life balance,
improving individual performance. Committed and effective,
Sodexo employees are thus able to deliver quality service to
clients and consumers.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018

% Workforce working

part-time 28.4% 24 7%

The increase in the share of part-time workers in Fiscal 2019 is
mainly due to the integration of Centerplate.

Resources and Sports & Leisure segments. These outcomes are a
potential source of improvement in employees’ engagement and
quality of life and a source of efficiency gains through reductions
in work stoppages and absenteeism.

Sodexo’s Health and Safety Policy guides our actions in this area
by defining minimum expectations for each business entity and
is based on OHSAS 18001.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
% of Group revenues of countries having one or more OHSAS 18001 or ISO 450071 certification p 88.4% 85.2%
Number of work related accidents requiring leave p 3,426 3,699*
Average number of work day absences per employee due to work-related accident or iliness

and non-work-related accident or illness 8.3 8.3
Lost Time Injury Rate (LTIR) 0.86 0.97
Best performance: Lost Time Injury Rate (LTIR) - Energy & Resources segment 0.10 -
% LTIR reduction 11.1% 6.5%
% of Group revenues of countries employing environmental experts 97.6% 96.9%

*  The Fiscal 2018 Number of work related accidents requiring leave incorrectly included 173 occupational iliness cases for North America. The Fiscal 2018 number

has, therefore, been restated to correct this error.

Sodexo’s LTIR is the frequency of accidents per 200,000 hours worked. 200,000 hours worked is a proxy for 100 full time equivalent

employees working for a full year.

3.2.4.2 Collective agreements for health and safety

Sodexo develops and maintains open and constructive dialogue with duly recognized trade unions or other legal representatives of

its employees on issues of mutual concern.

In France, more than 10 Committees and a dedicated team are working on the subject. All of our managers throughout the
organization have been incentivized on the reduction of the Lost Time Injury Rate (LTIR).
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In Sodexo’s International Framework Agreement with the IUF
(International Union of Food, agriculture, Hotel Restaurant
Catering, Tobacco and Allied Worker’s Associations), the
commitments include protection of health and safety through

prevention and improvement measures while conforming
with local legislation. Where appropriate, Sodexo’s collective
agreements may include provisions regarding health and safety.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
% of workforce covered by collective agreements 40.3% 43.9%
% of workforce working in countries that have collective agreements

and are covered by these agreements 88.8% 89.2%

3.2.5 Running business with integrity and respect for human
rights wherever Sodexo operates

Sodexo lives by its core values and its ethical principles. Every
employee in the Group is expected to understand and to act in
accordance with these values and principles. At the center of our
ethical principles is our commitment to business integrity. To
ensure integrity in all business dealings, Sodexo has adopted
strict principles formulated in its Statement of Business
Integrity. The statement is supported by a guide describing
concrete situations that employees might encounter.

Sodexo’s commitments to Human Rights and Fundamental
Rights at Work are described in the Human Rights Policy and
the Fundamental Rights at Work charter.

The Group’s Human Rights policy is based on the UN Guiding
Principles on Business and Human Rights, the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights and the International Labour
Organization’s (ILO) Declaration on Fundamental Principles and
Rights at Work.

Our occupational Health and Safety policy is encapsulated in the
Group Health and Safety Policy and the Environmental Policy is
covered by Better Tomorrow 2025.

Our responsible business requirements in relation to suppliers
and sub-contractors are described in the Sodexo Supplier Code
of conduct, to which suppliers and sub-contractors are required
to commit, as a condition of doing business with Sodexo. This
Supplier Code of conduct is supported by a Guide to help our
suppliers understand and act on their obligations.

To further strengthen the Group’s responsible business conduct
and governance standards, and to review the impact of legal
and regulatory developments, a Group Ethics and Compliance
Committee has been established. This Committee brings together
the heads of all relevant functions who will play a central role in the
definition, implementation and monitoring of the systems designed
to ensure that all Group activities are robust and compliant.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
% of workforce working in countries having the Sodexo Statement of Business Integrity available
in at least one official language 98.1% 96.8%
% of Group revenues of countries having implemented Sodexo’s 10 People Fundamentals p 87.9% 80.5%
% of workforce working in countries having the Group Human Rights policy available in at least
one official language 97.4% 96.9%
% of workforce working in countries implementing action plans to integrate people with
disabilities into the workplace 99.1% -
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3.2.6 Our commitments as a service provider

3.2.6.1 Provide and encourage our consumers to access
healthy lifestyle choices

s Serving 100 million consumers each day, we recognize our
responsibility to understand and respond to their specific needs
bV and their long-term aspirations.

It is both an opportunity and an obligation for Sodexo to
promote and encourage healthier choices that improve quality
of life for millions of people.

BETTER TOMORROW 100% of our consumers
are offered healthy lifestyle
OBJECTIVE options every day

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
% of On-site Services revenues of countries having a system to ensure that
employees with food service responsibilities are trained in compliance with local laws
and regulations and Global Food Safety and Hygiene Policy 95.8% 96.0% -0.2 pt
% of Group revenues of countries having one or more ISO 9001 certification 94.3% 94.4% -0.1 pt
% of On-site Services revenues of countries having either ISO 9001
or I1SO 22000 certification for food safety p 98.6% 98.5% +0.1 pt
% of On-site Services revenues of countries providing Health and Wellness Services
including physical wellness services 83.3% 81.4% +1.9 pt
% of North America client sites implementing actions that proactively address
Sodexo’s 10 Golden Rules of Nutrition, Health and Wellness 92.2% 89.1% +3.1 pts
Number of registered dietitians employed by Sodexo 5,138 5,306 -3.2%

The number of dietitians employed by Sodexo has decreased compared to the previous year, mainly due to Seniors in the U.S. sites
closure in Healthcare, and to the optimization of the number of dietitians per site.

3.2.6.2 Promote local development, fair, inclusive and sustainable
business practices

GENDER DEGENT WORK AND INDUSTRY, NNOVATION 11 ‘SUSTAINABLE CITIES 16 PEACE, JUSTICE
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Since its founding, Sodexo has worked to contribute to the

BETTER TOMORROW 10 billion euro of economic and social development of the communities, regions
our business value and countries where it operates.
OBJECTIVE will benefit SMEs

We are committed to making a positive impact on quality of life
for people in local communities through our business activities.
This is why we support communities, and contribute to creating
positive interactions with mutual benefits.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
% of Group revenues of countries having specific initiatives to integrate SMEs
(Small and Medium Enterprises) into Sodexo’s Value Chain 92.3% 91.8% +0.5 pt
Our business value benefiting SMEs (in billions of euro) 5.5 44 +25%
% in kg of certified sustainable coffee 58.1% 50.1% +8 pts
% of spend with contracted suppliers having signed the Sodexo Supplier Code
of conduct p 95.7% 93.6% +2.1 pts

Our business value benefiting SMEs has significantly increased in Fiscal 2019, mainly due to more robust tracking systems putin
place in Asia helping to better capture the data. The increase of the reporting scope for this indicator to 83% in Fiscal 2019, from 70%

in Fiscal 2018 has also helped to improve performance.
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3.2.6.3 Source responsibly and provide management services

that reduce carbon emissions

CLEAN WATER
AND SANITATION

18

v

A rich and resourceful planet is indispensable to quality of life in
the long term. This is why Sodexo strives for a healthier planet
in all we do.

Sourcing responsibly and managing services that contribute
to reducing carbon emissions are two major areas of our
business activities that reflect our commitment to protecting
the environment.

Today, more than half of Sodexo’s carbon emissions come from
its supply chain, primarily from carbon intensive commodities
such as beef, dairy, palm oil, soy and paper that can also have
an impact on deforestation.

In 2018 Sodexo co-founded the Global Coalition for Animal
Welfare (GCAW), the world’s first food industry-led initiative
aimed at advancing animal welfare globally. The global platform
unites major companies and animal welfare experts in improving
animal welfare standards at scale and in meeting consumer
demand for food products from animals reared in systems
that promote good welfare. Sodexo measures the percentage of
animal welfare certification on a species by species basis. We
publicly report our progress on cage-free eggs and sustainable
fish and seafood annually.

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
Sustainable supplies

% of physical certified sustainable palm oil (extended scope in Fiscal 2019)™ 34.7% n/a

% of cage free shell eggs (of the total of shell eggs purchased by Sodexo) 56.2% 37.6% +18.6 pts
% of cage free liquid eggs (of the total liquid eggs purchased by Sodexo) 60.8% 51.1% +9.7 pts
% of On-site Services revenues of countries having the 2018 Sodexo Animal Welfare

Supplier charter available in at least one official language 89.1% 95.5% -6.4 pts
% of certified sustainable fish and seafood as a % of total fish and seafood 36.3% 38.7% -2.4 pts
% of sustainable fish and seafood which is sustainable as a % of total seafood (in kg)® 80.3% 80.7% -0.4 pt
% of spend on certified sustainable paper disposables as a %

of total paper disposables p 67.3% 70.4% -3.1 pts

(1) In Fiscal 2019, we have increased our palm oil data collection scope, from top 2 products to total products containing palm oil.

(2) As per Sodexo Sustainable Seafood Sourcing Guide.

Cage free shell eggs and cage free liquid eggs indicators have
increased significantly compared to last year. These results
reflect all the effort put in place in countries for a more
responsible sourcing, including enhanced traceability and
transparency throughout our supply chain.

In Fiscal 2019, we have increased our palm oil data collection
scope, from top 2 products to all products containing palm oil.
The previous published results based on top two commodities
represented 59.5% in Fiscal year 2018.
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In Fiscal 2018, Sodexo issued a new, more demanding Animal
Welfare charter which is gradually deployed across the business.
Countries which have not yet implemented the new charter are
using the previous policy.

BETTER TOMORROW

34% reduction of carbon

OBJECTIVE emissions
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FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE
Reduction in carbon emissions

% of Group revenues of countries having one or more ISO 14007 certification 91.1% 90.8% +0.3 pt
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions energy consumption (in MWh) 601, 724 669,688* -67,964
Scope 1 and Scope 2 (market based) emissions (tCO,) 126, 230 144,468* -18,238
% reduction in carbon emissions (compared to 2011 baseline) absolute L4T% 40%* +7 pts
% reduction in carbon emissions (compared to 2011 baseline) intensity 62% 53%* +9 pts
Scope 3 Supply Chain carbon emissions (tCO,) 5,121,136

*  The figures reflect the 2017 results. In Fiscal 2019, we reduced the historical one-year delay in reporting and decided not to extrapolate the Fiscal 2018 data.

For the first time, Scope 3 supply chain information has been
collected and verified during the annual audit process.

The continued reduction in our direct Scope 1 and Scope 2
energy consumption and emissions compared to the 2011

baseline is mainly due to the implementation of efficient energy
management actions such as purchase of renewable energy and
equipment upgrade. In Fiscal 2019 we have surpassed our 34%
carbon reduction target for Scopes 1 and 2.

3.2.7 Our commitments as a corporate citizen

3.2.7.1

2 IEROD QUALITY GENDER 17 PARTNERSHIPS
'HUNGER EDUCATION EQUALITY FOR THE GOALS

1 N
POVERTY

L &

To act for a hunger-free world is to act for better quality of life.
Sodexo employees in the U.S. created Stop Hunger in 1996.

Stop Hunger is a global non-profit network working towards
a hunger-free world. The United Nations has set the goal of
bringing the world out of hunger in a sustainable way by 2030,
making a fairer and a happier world.

Thanks to Sodexo, which administratively supports Stop
Hunger, 100% of donations made to Stop Hunger go directly
to financing activities and sustainable solutions to support the
poorest local communities by empowering women, which we
believe represents the most effective way to eliminate hunger.

Fight hunger and malnutrition

Up to 150 million more people could be fed by giving them
access to the same resources as men. That is why Stop Hunger
has made women’s empowerment its priority and invested,
over three years, nearly 4 million U.S. dollars in programs to
support women who are taking action against hunger in their
communities.

Stop Hunger relies on partnerships with 1,200 local and
international NGOs, as well as on Sodexo’s unique ecosystem
and in particular its employees.

For more information, read the Stop Hunger activity report:
http://www.stop-hunger.org/files/live/sites/stophunger/
files/05-news/2019/StopHunger_ActivityReport_2019.pdf

BETTER TOMORROW

100 million stop hunger
beneficiaries

OBJECTIVE

FISCAL 2019

FISCAL 2018

CHANGE

Funds invested in programs to empower women working to end hunger
in their communities (in thousands of euro)

1,092

1,063

+2.7%

In addition to projects already launched in Fiscal 2018, in
2019 we continued our support to the WIA (Women In Africa),
because we share the same vision and desire to support the
empowerment of African women and the development of their
businesses. A further 19 initiatives in 13 countries, recently

selected, will be co-financed for 3 years by the Stop Hunger
Endowment Fund and the local Stop Hunger entity to support
these women who are taking charge of the destiny of their local
communities.
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3.2.7.2 Drive diversity and inclusion as a catalyst for societal change

1 REDUCED

1 PEACE, JUSTICE 1 PARTNERSHIPS
INEQUALITIES

AND STRONG FOR THE GOALS
INSTITUTIONS

Y |®

Each individual’s unique background, experience, and abilities
are at the heart of our vibrant workforce and truly reflect the
communities we serve. We strive to build a diverse and inclusive
culture where our employees feel valued and respected as
individuals. We also work closely with diverse local businesses
encouraging new points of view, sparking innovation, and
ultimately contributing to a positive impact on communities.

5 GENDER
EQUALITY

-~
g‘ =)
v

Sodexo has always placed the advancement of women at the heart
of its vision for economic, social and environmental development.

Our local partnerships contribute to the social fabric of the
communities, regions and countries where we operate. We
actively seek to bring diverse businesses into our network of
suppliers, including minority-owned, women-owned, disabled-
owned or LGBT-owned companies.

From social entrepreneurship projects for underprivileged women

to supporting causes that move the needle on diversity, we are
committed to making a positive impact in local communities.

BETTER TOMORROW 500,000 women in
communities educated through

job training centers

OBJECTIVE

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE

% of Group revenues of countries with initiatives to improve the quality of life of women

93.8% 89.1% +4.7 pts

% of Group revenues of countries with initiatives to improve the quality of life of women increased significantly mainly due to the

implementation of initiatives in Argentina, Germany and Norway.

3.2.7.3 Champion sustainable resource usage

17 PARTNERSHIPS

FOR THE GOALS

Given its position in the value chain, the breadth of its offer
and the myriad opportunities it has to engage, Sodexo is
well placed to contribute to more efficient and reduced
consumption of resources. Successful action and collaboration
can have significant positive impacts on the consumption
of our clients, Sodexo’s operations, its industry sectors and
supply chains.

Sodexo has developed a waste roadmap adopting the circular
economy approach, with the following key elements:

e value chain collaboration and leadership: we aim to
reinforce collaboration within and across the value chain as
a way to drive circular economy and thus, contribute to the
UN SDG 12.3 target of halving food waste at the retail and
consumer levels and reduce food losses along production and
supply chains, including post-harvest, by 2030;

o operational excellence: we leverage the expertise of our
470,000 employees to provide our clients with best in class
waste management services that will help them manage
resources more sustainably. We make sure our teams are
trained and encouraged to innovate, for the benefit of our
clients and consumers;

e client and consumer engagement: With 100 million
consumers served every day, we are in a unique position to drive
behavior change toward waste reduction;

o marketing &§ communications: through our global actions,
we help inform clients and consumers so they understand
and support the waste prevention challenge;

e measuring and public reporting: We ensure that waste
management is an integral part of site management and
require our sites to measure and report their performance.

BETTER TOMORROW

50% reduction in

OBJECTIVE our food waste

FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018 CHANGE

% of Group revenues of countries working to deliver on the United Nations’ food waste

objective

69.2% 65.9% +3.3 pts

The increase in this indicator is due to the active participation of Spain and Peru which have put in place initiatives such as
participation in multi-stakeholder groups and taskforces like Comunidad Por El clima and CCori Optimal Cooking.
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3.2.8 Our reporting methodology

Choice of indicators

In Fiscal 2019, we continue to disclose our Corporate
Responsibility related information and data in our Integrated
Report (chapter 1), chapter 2 and chapter 3 of the present report.

e As part of the Integrated Report we have presented our Value
Creation Model, our Materiality Matrix and our Corporate
Responsibility Roadmap Better Tomorrow 2025. These three
elements are linked and interdependent.

e Chapter 2 contains information of our concrete actions
responding to key issues identified in our Materiality
assessment.

e Chapter 3 presents our key performance indicators and their
progress compared to the previous year.

Sodexo’s Corporate Responsibility strategy requires that
workforce and environmental performance be measured with
clear indicators. These indicators take into consideration the
decentralized and primarily client site-based nature of Sodexo’s
operations and were selected to meet the following reporting
objectives:

e tocomply with legal requirements such as the European non-
financial Directive;

e to address the expectations of other external stakeholders,
including shareholders and rating agencies;

e to provide reporting that is consistent with the requirements
of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) and the United Nations
Global Compact.

In addition, Sodexo’s indicators:

e are key in allowing us to monitor progress in the areas
identified as key topics following our materiality assessment;

e include measures of the tangible benefits Sodexo brings to
its clients;

e enhance employee knowledge about Sodexo, increasing
awareness and engagement;

e provide visibility on progress for Group and country
management.

As part of its progressive journey, Sodexo has added some
additional indicators this year and will continue to do so (see
List of indicators).

Scope of consolidation

Indicators generally include all entities which are fully
consolidated for financial reporting purposes, with the following
exceptions:

e anew country added during the fiscal year is included in the
reporting scope in the following fiscal year; and

e acquired entities are included as from the date of acquisition.

Additional restrictions may be applicable and are specified in
the section below.

CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION
Extra-financial reporting

Fiscal 2019 workforce indicators

Workforce indicators are consolidated for all Sodexo entities,
except for:

e the number of training hours which excludes the U.S. and
Germany data (see limitations section below);

e the average number of work day absences per employee due
to work-related accidents or illnesses and non-work-related
accidents or illnesses excludes accident or illness and non-
work-related accident or illness for Brazil (includes work-
related accidents or ilinesses for Brazil).

Safety indicators cover On-site Services activity only,
representing more than 96% of Group revenues and 97% of our
total workforce.

Fiscal 2019 societal and environmental indicators

Societal and environmental indicators are calculated and
consolidated for entities representing over 92% of Group
revenues, except for:

e business value benefiting SMEs covering 83% of Group
revenues;

e Scopes 1 and 2 carbon emissions covering 81% of Group
revenues;

e Scope 3 Supply Chain Carbon emissions covering 65% of On-
Site Services activity revenues.

The business value benefiting SMEs represents the total
purchases for our On-site Services activity added to the emitted
vouchers value for Benefits and Rewards activity.

In order to streamline the collection and reporting process for
the societal and environmental indicators, we have changed the
reporting period. The new reporting period starts on June 1, 2018
and ends on May 31, 2019.

Certain environmental indicators are applicable only to On-site
Services or to Benefits & Rewards Services due to the nature
of the indicator itself; for example, an indicator relating to the
percentage of sustainable seafood purchased relates only to
On-site Services entities which provide Food services.

Reporting framework and tools

Sodexo’s commitments to social and environmental
responsibility have always been central to the Group’s
fundamentals. The Group reinforced its workforce and
environmental reporting in 2005 with the publication of its
first Corporate Responsibility Report and further developed
its sustainability performance processes in 2009 when its
Corporate Responsibility roadmap, the Better Tomorrow Plan
was launched. At the time, the Group committed to report
its progress regularly and transparently. In 2016, Sodexo
reconfirmed its commitment to continued progress as an
employer, a service provider and a corporate citizen through an
updated version of our roadmap, Better Tomorrow 2025.

Each year, Sodexo endeavors to improve its processes and to
this end, has implemented a reporting tool with two modules for
gathering and consolidating information.

Consistency checks are embedded within the tools and
additional control testing is performed.

The consolidation of workforce data is performed by Group
Human Resources with the exception of the Health and Safety
data which is consolidated by Group Health and Safety and the
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consolidation of environmental data is performed by Group
Corporate Responsibility.

Certain strategic workforce indicators are consolidated monthly
or quarterly for a detailed follow up as part of STEP dashboard.

All information published in this report was also examined by
the Group’s external auditors.

In addition to the “limited assurance” delivered by the external
auditors in relation to indicators published for the requirements
of European directive, Sodexo obtained a higher level of assurance
called “reasonable assurance” for the following key indicators:

e % of Group revenues of countries having implemented
Sodexo’s 10 People Fundamentals;

e total Workforce, per activity and client segment;
e retention rate for total workforce;
e retention rate for site management;

e departures related to Resignation of Continuous Contract
> 3 months (Excluding Site Loss)

e 9% of women’s representation on the Board of Directors;

e % of women'’s representation on the Executive Committee;
o % of women'’s representation among Group Senior Leaders;
* % of women in management positions;

e 9% of women’s representation in total workforce;

e number of work related accidents requiring a leave (LTSC);

e % of Group revenues of countries having one or more
OHSAS 18001 or ISO 45001 certification;

e % of On-site Services revenues of countries having either
1ISO 22000 or ISO 9001 certification for food safety;

e % of spend with contracted suppliers having signed the
Sodexo Supplier Code of conduct;

e 9% of spend on certified sustainable paper disposables as a %
of total paper disposables.

Limitations

Sodexo employs 470,237 people, in 67 countries, with differing
regulations and operates on a significant number of client sites
of different sizes and types of activity.

e Certain indicators therefore require some specific explanation
as follows:

e number of work-related accidents requiring a leave:
- excludes commuting accidents,
- includes Sodexo workforce only,

- excludes temporary labor, sub-contracted labor and other
personnel that are not Sodexo employees,

- may have insignificant differences created by the way
that work-related illness is accounted for locally;

e average number of days absence:

- includes absences for work-related accidents and illness
as well as personal accidents and illness,

- may have insignificant differences created by the way
the number of days of absence is accounted for locally;
as some include weekend and others only working days,
the minimum number of days of absence from which the
absence is recorded;

SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

e the number of hours of training in the U.S. is based on
an estimation. The estimation is an extrapolation of
data declared by employees representing 10% of the
population. Solutions are under discussion in order to
disclose this metric based on actual data in the next
years.

e Certain information is extremely difficult to gather given the
nature of the Group’s activities.

e total business value benefitting SMEs : Data for Sodexo
On site Services USA includes non-contracted suppliers;

e 19% of the total volume of fish and seafood purchased
by Sodexo cannot be categorized as per Sodexo Seafood
Guide (green, orange or red species), thus the result for
Fiscal 2019 is underestimated. A process will be put in
place to eliminate this limit next year;

e Scope T and Scope 2 energy consumption and related
carbon emissions are extrapolated for the Group based on
the energy consumption and carbon emissions calculation
for a set of 24 major countries representing 81% of Group
revenues;

e Scope 1 includes energy consumption and carbon
emissions related to the fuel consumed by vehicles used by
Sodexo as well as from its consumption of natural gas for
the offices and sites where Sodexo has operational control;

e Scope 2 includes the electricity consumption for the
offices and sites where Sodexo has operational control
and is market-based;

e this year, for the first time, we are publishing our Scope 3
Supply Chain emissions calculation (indirect emissions),
based on 65% revenue coverage, with the objective to
increase the scope in Fiscal 2020 and report full Scope 3
emissions (also including client sites footprint).

The calculation of carbon emissions related to the supply
chain takes into account the following elements:

- the emissions of the 30 most important commodities
for Sodexo (in terms of volume of purchase and carbon
impact). These products represent 85% of our purchases,

- transportation from the last point of processing to the
delivered site,
- emission factors by product.

e One of Sodexo’s missions is to improve quality of life for
its employees and all who it serves. Sodexo’s services are,
in the majority of cases, provided by its own employees
on a significant number of client sites where the Company
operates throughout the world. The following information is
therefore not applicable or not material for Sodexo:

e preventive or corrective actions with regard to discharges
into the atmosphere, water and soil with a significant
negative impact on the surrounding environment;

e consideration of noise and any other activity-specific
pollution;

e land usage;

e importance of sub-contracting.

Reconciliation tables

The reconciliation table is included in the section “Other
information” of this report.
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3.2.9 Report by one of the Statutory Auditors appointed as an
independent third party, on the consolidated non-financial
performance statement in the Management Report

This is a free English translation of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in French and it is provided solely for the convenience
of English-speaking readers. This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards applicable in France.

For the year ended August 31, 2019

SODEXO
255, quai de 1a Bataille de Stalingrad
92866 Issy-les-Moulineaux Cedex 9

To the Annual General Meeting,

In our capacity as the Statutory Auditor of your company (hereinafter the “entity”) appointed as the independent third party, certified
by the French Accreditation Committee (Comité Francais d’Accréditation or COFRAC) under number 3-1049™, we hereby report to you
on the consolidated non-financial performance statement for the year ended August 31t 2019 (hereinafter the “Statement”), included
in the Group Management Report, in accordance with the legal and regulatory provisions of Articles L. 225 102-1, R. 225-105 and
R. 225-105-1 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce).

Responsibility of the entity

It is the Board of Directors’ responsibility to prepare a Statement in accordance with legal and regulatory provisions, including a
presentation of the business model, a description of the main non-financial risks, a presentation of policies applied to mitigate these
risks and the outcomes of those policies, including key performance indicators.

The Statement has been prepared applying the procedures of the entity (hereinafter the “Guidelines”), the most significant aspects of
which are presented in the Statement and available upon request at the entity’s headquarters.

Independence and quality control

Ourindependence is defined by the provisions of Article L. 822-11-3 of the French Commercial Code and the French Code of Ethics for
statutory auditors (Code de déontologie). Moreover, we have implemented a quality control system that includes documented policies
and procedures to ensure compliance with applicable ethical rules, professional standards, laws and regulations.

Responsibility of the Statutory Auditor appointed as independent third party

On the basis of our work, it is our responsibility to express a limited assurance opinion about whether:
e the Statement complies with the provisions of Article R. 225-105 of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce);

e theinformation provided (hereinafter the “Information”) is fairly presented in accordance with Article R. 225-105-1(3) and Il of
the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) concerning policy outcomes, including key performance indicators and actions
relating to the main risks.

It is our responsibility to express, at the request of the entity and outside of the scope of accreditation, reasonable assurance that
information selected® by the entity and identified with the symbol V has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
the Guidelines.

Howeuver, it is not our responsibility to express an opinion on:

e the entity’s compliance with other applicable legal and regulatory provisions, particularly relating to Duty of Care and the fight
against corruption and tax evasion;

e the compliance of products and services with applicable regulatory provisions.

1 Accreditation scope available at www.cofrac.fr.
2 Refer to thelist of key indicators in Appendix 1 of this report.
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Nature and scope of our work

We performed our work described below in compliance with Article A. 225-1 et seq. of the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce),
defining the conditions under which the independent third party performs its engagement, and with the professional guidance
issued by the French Institute of Statutory Auditors (Compagnie nationale des commissaires aux comptes or CNCC) relating to this
engagement and with ISAE 3000 (international standard on assurance engagements other than audits or reviews of historical financial
information).

We conducted work to form an opinion on the Statement’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions and the fair presentation
of the Information therein:

e we gained an understanding of the activity of all companies in the consolidation scope, of the Entity’s exposure to the main social
and environmental risks relating to the business activity and, of its effects on respect for human rights and the fight against
corruption and tax evasion, including any related policies and their outcomes;

e we assessed the appropriateness of the Guidelines in terms of their relevance, completeness, reliability, neutrality and clarity, by
taking into consideration, where relevant, the sector’s best practices;

o we verified that the Statement covers every category of information required under Article L. 225-102-1, Paragraph lll concerning
social and environmental matters as well as respect for human rights and the fight against corruption and tax evasion;

e we verified that the Statement presents the business model and the main risks relating to the activity of all companies in the
consolidation scope, including - if relevant and proportionate - risks due to its business relationships, products or services, as well
as policies, actions and outcomes, including key performance indicators;

e we verified that the Statement presents the disclosures required under article R. 225-105, Paragraph Il, of the French Commercial
Code if they are relevant given the main risks or policies presented;

e we obtained an understanding of the process for selecting and validating the main risks;
e we enquired about the existence of internal control and risk management procedures implemented by the entity;
e we assessed the consistency of the outcomes and key performance indicators with the main risks and policies presented;

e we verified that the Statement covers all companies in the consolidation scope in accordance with Article L. 233-16 within the
limits specified in the Statement;

e we assessed the data collection process implemented by the entity to ensure the completeness and fair presentation of the
Information;

e For key performance indicators and the other quantitative outcomes™ that we considered the most important, we set up:
e analytical procedures to verify that collected data is correctly consolidated and that any changes to the data are consistent,

e tests of details based on sampling to verify that definitions and procedures are correctly applied and to reconcile data with
supporting documents. The work was carried out with a selection of entities contributing®® to the reported data and represents
between 39% and 57% of consolidated data of key performance indicators and outcomes selected for these tests;

e we referred to documentary sources and conducted interviews to corroborate the qualitative disclosures (actions and outcomes)
that we deemed the most important® ;

e we assessed the overall consistency of the Statement based on our understanding of all companies within the consolidation scope.

We believe that the work carried out, based on our professional judgment, is sufficient to provide a basis for our limited assurance
opinion. A higher level of assurance would have required us to carry out more extensive procedures.

Means and resources

Our work drew on the skills of seven individuals and was conducted between May and November 2019 for a total working time of
approximately twelve weeks.

To assist us in conducting our work, we called on our firm’s sustainable development and corporate social responsibility (CSR)
specialists. We conducted around ten interviews with the individuals responsible for preparing the Statement.

1 See the list of key performance indicators and other results in Appendix 1 of this report.

2 Entities selected in the context of legal limited assurance:
- Sodexo On-Site Services: Sodexo France, Sodexo USA, Sodexo Chile.
Complementary entities selected under reasonable assurance, outside the scope of accreditation:
- On-Site Services: Sodexo India, Sodexo ltaly.
- Sodexo Benefits & Rewards: Sodexo India.

3 See the list of key performance indicators and other results in Appendix 1 of this report.
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OPINION

Based on our work, we have no material misstatements to report that would call into question the compliance of the non-financial
performance statement with the applicable regulatory provisions, or the fair presentation of the Information, taken as a whole, in
accordance with the Guidelines.

COMMENTS

Without qualifying our opinion, in accordance with article A. 225-3 of the French Commercial Code, we draw your attention to the
following matters:

Training and Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions indicators, related to year ended August 315t, 2019, respectively cover 57% and 65%
of the group turnover, as mentioned in chapter “3.2.8 Our reporting methodology” of the Statement.

Reasonable assurance on a selection of non-financial information

Nature and scope of our work

With regard to the information selected by the entity and identified with the symbol vV in chapter 3, we conducted the same procedures
as those described in the paragraph “Nature and scope of our work” (for the most important non-financial information). However,
these procedures were more in-depth, particularly regarding the number of tests.

Consequently, the selected sample represents between 51% and 58% of the information identified with the symbol V.

We believe that these procedures enable us to express reasonable assurance regarding the information selected by the entity and
identified with the symbol V.

Conclusion

In our opinion, the information selected by the entity and identified with the symbol V in chapter 3 has been prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the Guidelines.

French original signed by:

Paris-La Défense, November 6, 2019

KPMG SA
Fanny Houlliot Caroline Bruno Diaz
Partner Partner
Sustainability Services Audit
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Appendix 1

SOCIAL INDICATORS ASSURANCE LEVEL
Total employees Reasonable
Total employees per activity and client segment Reasonable
Retention rate for total workforce Reasonable
Retention rate for site management Reasonable
Number of Departures related to Resignation of continuous employment > 3 months excl. site loss Reasonable
Total New Hires Excluding Acquisitions & Transfers Limited
Number of work days absence due to work-related accident or illness and non-work-related accident or illness Limited
Total number of training hours Limited
Average number of hours of training per employee Limited
% of total workforce participated in at least one training during the fiscal year Limited
% of women'’s representation on the Board of Directors Reasonable
% of women'’s representation on the Executive Committee Reasonable
% of women’s representation among Group Senior Leaders Reasonable
% of women in management positions Reasonable
% of women'’s representation in total workforce Reasonable
% of Group revenues of countries having implemented Sodexo's 10 People Fundamentals Limited
HEALTH & SAFETY INDICATORS ASSURANCE LEVEL
Number of work related accidents requiring a leave Reasonable
Lost Time Injury Case Limited
% of LTIR reduction Limited
% of Group revenues of countries having one or more OHSAS 180071 or ISO 45001 certification Reasonable
ENVIRONMENTAL INDICATORS ASSURANCE LEVEL
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions energy consumption Limited
Scope 1 and Scope 2 (market-based) emissions Limited
% reduction in carbon emissions (compared to 2011 baseline) absolute Limited
% reduction in carbon emissions (compared to 2011 baseline) intensity Limited
Scope 3 Supply Chain carbon emissions Limited
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SOCIETAL INDICATORS ASSURANCE LEVEL
% of Group revenues of countries employing environmental resources Limited
% of On-site Services revenues of countries having either ISO 9001 or ISO 22000 certification for food safety Reasonable
Our business value benefiting SMEs (in billions of euro) Limited
% of spend with contracted suppliers having signed the Sodexo Supplier Code of conduct Reasonable
% of physical certified sustainable palm oil Limited
% of cage free shell eggs (of the total of shell eggs purchased by Sodexo) Limited
% of cage free liquid eggs (of the total liquid eggs purchased by Sodexo) Limited
% of sustainable fish and seafood which is sustainable as a % of total fish and seafood Limited
% of spend on certified sustainable paper disposables as a % of total paper disposables Reasonable

Appendix 2

QUALITATIVE SOCIAL INFORMATION

Sodexo’s Health & Safety policy

Programs and other measures in favour of the development of talents skills and the results

QUALITATIVE ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION

Innovative environmental actions implemented to fight against climate change and to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

The « WasteWatch » program related to organic waste prevention and the results

QUALITATIVE SOCIETAL INFORMATION

Actions implemented to promote transparency and business integrity

The food offers and other promoting measures for a healthy food balance towards the consumers

The Group Human Rights policy

The actions of partnership and sponsorship
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3.3 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AUGUST 31, 2019

3.3.1 Consolidated income statement

(in millions of euro) NOTES FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
Revenues 3 21,954 20,407

Cost of sales 4.1 (18,756) (17,320)
Gross profit 3,198 3,087

Selling, General and Administrative costs 41 (2,000) (1,963)
Share of profit of companies consolidated by the equity method that directly

contribute to the Group’s business 4.9 2 4

Underlying operating profit 3 1,200 1,128

Other operating income 4.1 11 10

Other operating expenses 4.1 (152) (147)
Operating profit 1,059 997

Financial income 4.2 Lb 46

Financial expense 4.2 (144) (136)
Share of profit of other companies consolidated by the equity method 4.9 4 2

Profit for the year before tax 963 909

Income tax expense 4.3 277) (245)
Net profit for the year 686 664
Of which:

Attributable to non-controlling interests 21 13

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 665 651

Basic earnings per share (in euro) L.L 4.56 4.0
Diluted earnings per share (in euro) bL.bL 4.50 4.34
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3.3.2 Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(in millions of euro) NOTES FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 686 664
Components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Change in fair value of cash flow hedge instruments 416 and 4.14

Change in fair value of cash flow hedge instruments reclassified to profit or loss 416 and 4.14

Currency translation adjustment L4 190 (245)
Currency translation adjustment reclassified to profit or loss L4 3)

Tax on components of other comprehensive income that may be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss 414

Share of other components of comprehensive income (loss) of companies

consolidated by the equity method, net of tax 414 and 4.9 (7) m
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan obligation 4171 and 4.14 4 79

Change in fair value of financial assets revalued through other comprehensive 2.1.2,411.2

income and 4.14 175

Tax on components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified

subsequently to profit or loss 414 (5) (13)
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS), AFTER TAX 354 (180)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1,040 485

Of which:

Attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,021 471

Attributable to non-controlling interests 19 14
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3.3.3 Consolidated statement of financial position
Assets

(in millions of euro) NOTES AUGUST 31, 2019 AUGUST 31, 2018

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 4.5 684 619
Goodwill 4.6 6,158 5,664
Other intangible assets 4.7 801 704
Client investments 4.8 626 558
Companies consolidated by the equity method 4.9 62 83
Financial assets 411 999 190
Derivative financial instrument assets 416 5 3
Other non-current assets 412 20 18
Deferred tax assets 4.20 99 105
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 9,455 7,944
CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets 411 58 36
Derivative financial instrument assets 416 7 15
Inventories 294 280
Income tax receivable 412 125 176
Trade and other receivables 412 4,626 4,121
Restricted cash and financial assets related to the Benefits & Rewards Services

activity 4.11 1,120 1,042
Cash and cash equivalents 413 1,781 1,666
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8,012 7,336
TOTAL ASSETS 17,467 15,280

88 SODEXO - FISCAL 2019 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT —— WWW.SODEXO.COM



Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION
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(in millions of euro) NOTES AUGUST 31, 2019 AUGUST 31, 2018
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Share capital 590 590
Additional paid-in capital 248 248
Reserves and retained earnings 3,618 2,445
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 4,456 3,283
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 42 45
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 414 4,498 3,328
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 415 3,902 3,537
Derivative financial instrument liabilities 4.16 7 -
Employee benefits 47 403 389
Other non-current liabilities 419 171 190
Provisions 4.18 88 88
Deferred tax liabilities 4.20 151 126
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4,722 4,330
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Bank overdrafts 4.13 35 28
Borrowings 415 182 420
Derivative financial instrument liabilities 416 0 1
Income tax payable 99 98
Provisions 418 58 73
Trade and other payables 419 4,892 4,222
Vouchers payable 2,981 2,780
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 8,247 7,622
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,467 15,280
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3.3.4 Consolidated cash flow statement

(in millions of euro) NOTES FISCAL 2019 FISCAL 2018
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating profit of consolidated companies 1,057 993
Elimination of non-cash and non-operating items

Depreciation, amortization and impairment of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 365 317
Provisions (39) (15)
Disposal (gains) losses and other non-cash items 37 20
Dividends received from companies consolidated by the equity method 4.9 10 19
Interest paid (129) 117)
Interest received 42 51
Income tax paid (204) (128)
Operating cash flow 1,139 1,140
Change in working capital from operating activities 129 (7)
Change in inventories 3) (6)
Change in trade and other receivables (384) (160)
Change in trade and other payables 406 193
Change in vouchers payable 164 194
Change in financial assets related to the Benefits & Rewards Services activity (53) (228)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,268 1,133
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (400) (329)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 17 31
Change in client investments 4.8 (31) 11
Change in financial assets and share of companies consolidated by the equity method (94) (40)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries (308) (683)
Disposals of subsidiaries 7 11
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (809) (1,000)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid to Parent company shareholders 414 (403) 4171)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders of consolidated companies (19) (13)
Purchases of treasury shares 414 amn 371)
Sales of treasury shares 4 25
Increase in share capital 1 1
Change in non-controlling interests (1) (5)
Proceeds from borrowings (excluding leasing) 415 278 645
Repayment of borrowings 415 (257) (215)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (408) (345)
CHANGE IN NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 52 (212)
Net effect of exchange rates and other effects on cash 58 (130)
Net cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,638 1,980
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 4.13 1,746 1,638
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3.3.5 Consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

ATTRIBUTABLE

NUMBER ADDITIONAL RESERVES AND CURRENCY TO EQUITY

OF SHARES SHARE PAID-IN COMPREHENSIVE TRANSLATION  HOLDERS OF  NON-CONTROLLING
(in millions of euro) OUTSTANDING  CAPITAL CAPITAL INCOME  ADJUSTMENT  THE PARENT INTERESTS TOTAL
Notes 414 414
Shareholders’ equity as of
August 31, 2018 147,454,887 590 248 3,375 (930) 3,283 45 3,328
Impact of IFRS 9 & IFRS 15
first-time application™ 530 530 530
Shareholders’ equity as of
September 1, 2018 147,454,887 590 248 3,905 (930) 3,813 45 3,858
Net profit for the year 665 665 21 686
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax 166 190 356 (2) 354
Comprehensive income 831 190 1,021 19 1,040
Dividends paid (403) (403) (22) (425)
Capital reduction by
cancelling treasury shares
Treasury share transactions (7 (7) (7
Share-based payment
(net of income tax) 33 33 33
Change in ownership interest
without any change of control (5) (5) 0 (5)
Other® 4 4 0 4
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AS
OF AUGUST 31, 2019 147,454,887 590 248 4,358 (740) 4,456 L2 4,498

(1) See note 2.1.2 “New accounting standards and interpretations required to be applied”.
(2) Including the effects of hyperinflation, recognition of commitments to repurchase non-controlling interests.
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

ATTRIBUTABLE

NUMBER ADDITIONAL  RESERVES AND CURRENCY TO EQUITY

OF SHARES SHARE PAID-IN COMPREHENSIVE TRANSLATION  HOLDERS OF  NON-CONTROLLING
(in millions of euro) OUTSTANDING  CAPITAL CAPITAL INCOME  ADJUSTMENT  THE PARENT INTERESTS TOTAL
Notes 414 4154
Shareholders’ equity as of
August 31, 2017 150,830,449 603 534 3,084 (685) 3,536 34 3,570
Net profit for the year 651 651 13 664
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax 65 (245) (180) 0 (180)
Comprehensive income 716 (245) 471 14 485
Dividends paid &11) (4171) (16) (427)
Capital reduction by
cancelling treasury shares (3,375,562) (14) (286) 300
Treasury share transactions (348) (348) (348)
Share-based payment
(net of income tax) Ll Ll Ll
Change in ownership interest
without any change of control (0) (0) 14 13
Other* (10) (10) 0 9)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AS
OF AUGUST 31, 2018 147,454,887 589 248 3,375 (930) 3,283 45 3,328

* Including the effects of hyperinflation and the recognition of put options written over non-controlling interests other than in connection with business

combinations.
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3.4 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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— Sodexo is a société anonyme (a form of limited liability company) domiciled in France, with its

headquarters located in Issy-les-Moulineaux.

Sodexo’s consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2079 were approved
by the Board of Directors on November 6, 2019 and will be submitted to the Annual Shareholders

Meeting on January 21, 2020.

1. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

During the 2018-2019 financial year, the Group significantly
strengthened its Personal & Home Services offering, particularly
in the Childcare market with the acquisition of Créches de France
and Elly & Stoffl in Germany, and in the Homecare market with
the acquisition of The Good Care Group in the United Kingdom,
Domicil + in France and Pronep in Brazil. Sodexo also acquired
Novae Restauration in Switzerland, and Alliance in Partnership
in the UK which operates in Education, as well as International
Club of Suppliers in the U.S.

The impacts of these business combinations on the consolidated
financial statements at August 31, 2019 are detailed in
note 4.23 “Business combinations”.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation of
the financial statements
2.1.1 Basis of preparation of financial

information for Fiscal 2019

Pursuant to European regulation 1606/2002 of July 19, 2002, the
consolidated financial statements of the Sodexo Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) and approved by the European Union as
of the year end. A comprehensive list of the accounting standards
adopted by the European Union is available for consultation
on the European Commission website at https://ec.europa.eu/
commission/index_en.

Information for the comparative year presented has been
prepared using the same principles.

The IFRS application dates as approved by the European
Union have been the same as those for the IFRS standards
published by the IASB for the Company’s past three fiscal years.
Consequently, any differences between the two sets of standards
arising out of delays in approval by the European Union had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The numbers shown in the tables were prepared in thousands
of euro and are presented in millions of euro unless otherwise
indicated.
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In addition, the Group has invested through its strategic
investment fund Sodexo Ventures in Meican, a Chinese
technology company focused on digital food solutions in the
corporate environment.

Finally, in June 2019, the Group carried out a 250-million
pounds sterling nine-year bond (redeemable in June 2028)
bearing interest at an effective annual rate of 1.814%. This
bond issue, which was largely oversubscribed and placed with
European investors, is an integral part of the active management
of the Group’s debt, partly to refinance the British acquisitions
of this year and allowing a naturel hedge of the Group assets in
pounds sterling.

2.1.2 New accounting standards

and interpretations required to be applied

The accounting policies used by the Group to prepare its
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended
August 31, 2019 are the same as those used for the consolidated
financial statements as of August 31, 2018, except for the first-
time application of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 as described hereafter.

2.1.2.1 FIRST-TIME APPLICATION OF IFRS 9

“FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS”
IFRS 9 specifies the principles of recognition and financial
reporting for financial instruments. These principles have been
applied by the Group effective September 1, 2018, replacing
those required by IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”. IFRS 9 introduces:

e a new classification of financial instruments, which
determines valuation and accounting rules, based on the
management model and the contractual specifications of the
financial instruments (Tier 1);

e a new model of depreciation of financial assets, based on
expected credit losses, replacing the model previously based
on incurred credit losses (Tier 2); and

e new principles on hedge accounting (Tier 3).
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The nature and impacts of the main changes in accounting
policies arising from the application of IFRS 9 are summarized
in the following paragraphs.

Tier 1: Classification and measurement of financial assets
and liabilities

The standard presents a new model for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, based on the contractual
characteristics of cash flows and on the economic model for
managing these assets. The four categories prescribed by IAS 39
for the classification of financial assets have been replaced by
the following three categories:

e financial assets measured at amortized cost;
e financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss;

e financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The main impact for Sodexo relates to the 19.61% stake held by
the Group through its subsidiary Sofinsod, in the share capital of
Bellon SA, the company that controls Sodexo S.A. Under IAS 39,
the Group previously recognized its interest in Bellon SA at cost
(32.4 million euro). The application of IFRS 9 led the Group to
measure this investment at fair value in accordance with IFRS 13
“Fair value measurement’ and to recognize future changes in fair
value in Other Comprehensive Income. The measurement of the
fair value of the interest in Bellon SA is presented in note 4.21
“Financial Instruments”.

Tier 2: Impairment of financial assets

The IAS 39 financial asset impairment model, based on incurred
losses, has been replaced by a model based on expected
credit losses, leading to the recognition of an impairment for
the expected losses on receivables and long-term financial
assets as of their initial recognition. Within the Group, this
new impairment model is only applicable to financial assets
measured at amortized cost (consisting mainly of trade
receivables). The application of this model has a limited impact
on the Group’s financial statements: the difference between
the expected credit losses at maturity assessed by applying
the simplified model provided by IFRS 9 and the impairment
recognized for the incurred credit losses was 23 million euro
before tax as of September 1, 2018.

Tier 3: Hedge Accounting

The Group chose to adopt the new general hedge accounting
model introduced by IFRS 9, whereby hedge accounting must
be aligned with its risk management objectives and strategy.
IFRS 9 also requires a more qualitative and prospective approach
to assessing hedge effectiveness. These new principles have no
impact on the Group financial statements.

The total impact of these changes as of the first application
is 530 million euro (net of tax) and was accounted for in
shareholders’ equity on September 1, 2018, with no restatement
of the comparative periods presented in accordance with the
option provided by the transitional provisions of IFRS 9. The
following table presents first-application impacts recorded in
shareholders’ equity on September 1, 2018:

CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

IMPACT AS OF

(in millions of euro) SEPTEMBER 1, 2018

Bellon SA shares 564
Impairment of financial assets (23)
Deferred tax assets 6
Deferred tax liabilities on long-term capital gain ar)
TOTAL 530
2.1.2.2 FIRST-TIME APPLICATION OF IFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM

CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS”

IFRS 15, which defines the principles for recognizing revenue,
replaced IAS 18 “Revenue” and IAS 11 “Construction Contracts’
along with the related interpretations, as from September 1, 2018
for the Group. IFRS 15 applies to all contracts with customers
except for leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts,
which are addressed in other standards. IFRS 15 defines a single
framework for recognizing revenue. It introduces new concepts
and principles regarding revenue recognition, particularly in
terms of identifying performance obligations and allocating the
transaction price to performance obligations when there are
several different performance obligations in a given contract.

The analysis of transactions and contracts for the different
material sources of revenue showed that the accounting policies
applied by the Group to recognize revenues remain appropriate
under IFRS 15, except in specific cases. The only change relates
to the accounting treatment of certain contracts in relation
to On-site Services, which have been reassessed to reflect the
change in qualification between agent and principal (leading to
the recognition of the related revenue on a gross or net basis),
and the recognition as a deduction from the revenues of fees or
rent paid by the Group in certain circumstances to its clients
(previously recorded as operating expenses).

Considering the limited impact of the first-time application of
IFRS 15 on the Group financial statements because of the nature
of its activities, the cumulative catch-up method has been
applied, allowing for the change in revenue recognition to be
recognized in opening equity in Fiscal 2019, as of September 1,
20718. Accordingly, an immaterial negative impact of -1 million
euro was recognized in Fiscal 20179 opening shareholders’
equity. The impact of IFRS 15 for Fiscal 2079 was not material.

The accounting principles for recognizing revenue applied by the
Group are described in note 2.22.2.

2.1.3 Accounting standards and interpretations
issued but not yet applicable

The Group has not elected to early adopt any standards,
interpretations or amendments not required to be applied in
Fiscal 2019.

The Group has not applied any IFRSs that had not yet been
approved by the European Union as of August 31, 2019.

It is currently analyzing the impacts of applying IFRS 16
“Leases” and IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over income tax treatments”.
The Group does not expect the application of the other
standards, amendments or interpretations to have a material
impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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e IFRS 16 “Leases”, applicable to the Group as from the
fiscal year opening on September 1, 2019

IFRS 16 eliminates the current dual accounting model for
lessees, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet
finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. In
accordance with the new standard, all leases will now have to
be recognized on the balance sheet, with the recognition of an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset, and a
lease liability corresponding to the present value of the fixed
lease payments over the reasonably certain term of the lease
agreement (considering renewal or early termination options
expected to be exercised). Only short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are exempt from this requirement. IFRS 16
will also affect the presentation of lease transactions in the
consolidated income statement (with rental expense replaced
by depreciation expense and interest expense).

The implementation of IFRS 16 has been subject to a dedicated
project within the Group. During Fiscal 2019, the Group
continued its work on collecting data relating to the leases in
place in its various business segments and regions. In addition,
the Group adapted its processes and its IT systems in order
to be able to present its consolidated financial statements in
compliance with IFRS 16 as of Fiscal 2020. As at August 31,
2019, the Group finalized the inventory of contracts and
is deploying its tool dedicated to lease management and
accounting.

The Group will apply IFRS 16 as of September 1, 2079 using
the simplified retrospective approach, without restating the
comparative consolidated financial statements at of August 31,
2019. The Group has also opted to apply the two exemptions
proposed in the standard (leases for periods of 12 months or
less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value).

Subject to the outcome of the discussions under way at the
IASB and IFRIC and based on the portfolio of existing contracts
and their current contractual terms, the Group estimates
that the amount of the liability it will need to recognize in the
consolidated statement of financial position could be close to
1.3 billion euro. This amount is not directly comparable to the
operating lease commitments presented as off-balance sheet
commitments in note 4.24.2. The difference is mainly explained
by the difference in the lease terms considered (the reasonably
certain term of the leases used to determine the lease liability to
be recognised in accordance with IFRS 16 being generally longer
than the non-cancellable term used to determine the off-balance
sheet commitments), partly offset by the discounting effect.

e IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over income tax treatments”,
applicable to the Group as from the fiscal year opening
on September 1, 2019

IFRIC 23 clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement
requirements in IAS 12 “Income Taxes” when there is uncertainty
over the acceptability of a particular tax treatment under tax
law.

The possible effects of applying IFRIC 23 are currently being
analyzed.
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2.2 Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the
management of Sodexo and its subsidiaries to make estimates
and assumptions which affect the amounts reported for assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities as of the date of preparation
of the financial statements, and for revenues and expenses for
the period.

These estimates and valuations are updated continuously based

on past experience and on various other factors considered

reasonable in view of current circumstances and are the basis for

the assessments of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities.

Actual results may differ substantially from these estimates if

assumptions or circumstances change.

Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions

include the following:

e impairment of current and non-current assets (notes 4.10
to 4.12);

e fair value of financial assets and derivative financial
instruments (notes 4.16 and 4.21);

e provisions and litigation (notes 4.18 and 4.28);

e valuation of post-employment defined benefit plan assets
and liabilities (note 4.17);

e recognition of deferred tax assets (note 4.20);

e share-based payment (note 4.22);

e valuation of goodwill and intangible assets acquired as part
of a business combination, as well as their estimated useful
lives (note 4.23).

2.3 Principles and methods
of consolidation
2.3.1 Intragroup transactions

Intragroup transactions and balances, and unrealized losses
and gains between Group companies, are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains,
unless they represent an impairment loss.

2.3.2 Consolidation methods

A subsidiary is an entity directly or indirectly controlled by
Sodexo S.A. The Group controls a subsidiary when it is exposed or
has rights to obtain variable benefits from its involvement with
the subsidiary and has the ability to influence those benefits
through its power over the subsidiary. In determining whether
control exists, voting rights granted by equity instruments are
taken into account only when they give the Group substantive
rights. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date on which
control is obtained to the date on which control ceases to be
exercised.

Associates are companies in which Sodexo S.A. directly or
indirectly exercises significant influence over financial and
operating policy without exercising exclusive or joint control.
Joint ventures are joint arrangements in which Sodexo S.A.
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directly or indirectly exercises joint control and has rights
to the net assets of the arrangement. Associates and joint
ventures are consolidated by the equity method. Sodexo has
a number of equity interests in project companies established
in connection with Public-Private Partnership (PPP) contracts.
These contracts enable governments to call upon the private
sector for the design, construction, financing and management
of public infrastructure (hospitals, schools, barracks, prisons),
with detailed performance criteria. An analysis is performed for
each of these equity interests, in order to determine whether
they qualify as associates or joint ventures.

Sodexo only makes equity and subordinated debt investments
in such projects when it acts as a service provider to the project
company.

Further information on the main entities consolidated as of
August 31, 2018 is provided in note 6 “Scope of consolidation”.

2.3.3 Foreign currency translation

The exchange rates used are derived from rates quoted by the
European central bank and on other major international financial
markets.

2.3.3.1 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the period end are translated using the closing
rate. The resulting translation differences are reported in
financial income or expense.

Non-monetary foreign-currency assets and liabilities reported at
historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities reported
at fair value are translated using the exchange rate at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Transactions for the period are translated at the exchange rate
at the transaction date.

Translation differences on monetary items that are in substance
part of a net investment in a foreign operation consolidated by
Sodexo are reported in other comprehensive income until the
disposal or liquidation of the investment.

2.3.3.2 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS DENOMINATED

IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Countries with stable currencies

The separate financial statements of each consolidated entity
are presented on the basis of the primary economic environment
(functional currency) in which the entity operates.

For consolidation purposes, all foreign-currency assets and
liabilities of consolidated entities are translated into the
reporting currency of the Sodexo Group (the euro) at the closing
exchange rate, and all income statement items are translated
at the average exchange rate for the period. The resulting
translation differences are recognized in other comprehensive
income under “Currency translation adjustment”.

CONSOLIDATED INFORMATION
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Countries with hyperinflationary economies

For these countries, the difference between profit or loss for the
period translated at the average rate and profit or 1oss for the
period translated at the closing rate is recognized in financial
income or expense.

Since July 1, 2018, Argentina has been classified as a country
with a hyperinflationary economy. However, the impacts of
hyperinflation in that country were not material at Group level
during Fiscal 2019.

2.4 Business combinations
and goodwill

The purchase method is used to account for acquisitions of
subsidiaries by the Group. Fair value of the consideration
corresponds to the fair value of assets acquired, e